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Unisys is a worldwide information technology ser-

vices and solutions company whose 39,000 people

help clients in more than 100 countries utilize tech-

nology to seize opportunities, overcome challenges

and succeed in the global economy. 

Our company offers a rich portfolio of business

solutions led by our expertise in consulting and

systems integration, outsourcing, network services

and security, coupled with leading enterprise-class

server and related technologies. Primary vertical

markets for Unisys worldwide are the financial 

services, transportation, communications, media,

commercial and public sectors, including U.S. 

federal government customers. 

Unisys is headquartered in Blue Bell, Pennsylvania,

in the Greater Philadelphia area. For more informa-

tion on the company, access the Unisys home page

on the World Wide Web at www.unisys.com.

Investor information can be found at

www.unisys.com/investor.

About our cover   

Unisys provides the solution to the puzzle of how organizations can use

technology to create business value. Our cover graphically represents 

what we do and shows how we intertwine our expertise in the service 

areas of outsourcing, network services and systems integration, as well 

as in technology.

Contents

Letter to Stakeholders 1
Chairman, President and CEO 
Larry Weinbach reviews 2001 
and outlines the Unisys strategy 
for 2002.

Chairman’s Q&A 3
Larry Weinbach answers 
operational questions.

Our Work: Services and Technology 4
What we do.

Our Success: Unisys Customers 6
Who we do it for.

Our Strength: Unisys People 11
Who we are.

Our Premise: Educating 12
for Leadership
How we innovate.

Financial Review 13

Corporate Officers 47

Board of Directors 48

Investor Information 49



After more than a decade of robust growth, the information technology industry underwent
a sharp contraction in 2001. An uncertain global economy, compounded by the tragic events of
September 11, caused organizations to curtail technology spending to reduce costs and preserve
cash. The swiftness and severity of the downturn were unprecedented, and will likely be the
subject of business textbooks for years to come.

All of this made 2001 a very tough year for information technology providers, and Unisys
was not immune. Particularly hard hit were sales of our enterprise servers, as customers reduced
their purchases of new computer hardware. Our systems integration practice was also negatively
impacted. Economic realities forced us to take difficult actions to reduce costs. In the fourth
quarter we recorded a $276 million pretax charge primarily to cover the elimination of 3,750
positions worldwide, including about 750 through a U.S. early retirement program.

Against such a grim backdrop, however, Unisys did something many technology firms could
not: We delivered profits from our operations every quarter in 2001. In fact, we achieved net
income of $153.9 million before special items in 2001. Even with the drop in technology sales,
our 2001 revenue, at $6.02 billion, came in essentially unchanged from year 2000 revenue, after
adjusting for our decision to de-emphasize approximately $800 million of low-margin 
commodity hardware sales. And in a year when cash re-emerged as king, we delivered more
than $200 million in cash flow from operations.

The relative stability of these results, in the midst of the economic storm witnessed in 2001,
speaks to the progress Unisys has made in recent years.

We can start with our balance sheet. Five years ago, as a highly leveraged company, we were
paying $370 million in annual interest and preferred dividends. In 2001, because of our work in
reducing debt and enhancing profitability from operations over the past several years, Unisys
incurred only $70 million in interest expense. This financial flexibility has proved invaluable in
helping us weather the worst slump in corporate profits in decades.

But even more important has been our strategic progress in repositioning Unisys as a services-
driven, technology-enabled provider. Five years ago, we were highly dependent on hardware
sales to drive our revenue and earnings. Today, because of the focus we’ve placed on enhancing
our service capabilities, nearly 75 percent of our revenue comes from service businesses that are 
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less subject to the volatility of technology cycles. Our outsourcing business — an area that
provides a long-term stream of revenue — continued to grow in 2001. And while industry
conditions remain tough in the systems integration and consulting market, we are seeing
encouraging signs of progress from our efforts to reposition this business. Orders strength-
ened at the end of 2001, and we look for profitable growth from the systems integration and
consulting business in 2002.

A transition is also under way in our technology business. Here, too, we have focused our
resources where we can add value to customers — namely, powerful enterprise servers based
on our groundbreaking Cellular MultiProcessing (CMP) architecture. By making use of stan-
dard Intel chips and Microsoft software, our CMP servers provide mainframe-class capabili-
ties with exceptional price-performance. We have engineered a major transition of both our
legacy ClearPath products and our Intel-based ES7000 servers to the CMP platform. Now we
are working with our partners to accelerate sales of our CMP-based servers.

Of course, the real proof of our transformation is in the work we do for clients. In the
following pages you can see examples of Unisys engagements worldwide where we are
working as a business partner to make our clients more successful. While no transition of this
magnitude is easy, especially in the current economic environment, I am pleased with the
strides we’ve made and am confident that our strategy will lead to enhanced value for both
our clients and our stockholders. And I thank our employees for their untiring efforts in
enabling us to transition to a services-driven, technology-enabled global company.

Lawrence A. Weinbach

Financial Summary*

Year ended December 31

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

2000* 2001* % change

Revenue $6,885.0 $6,018.1 (13%)**

SG&A 1,276.8 1,073.1 (16%)

SG&A as % of revenue 18.5% 17.8% –

Operating income 553.0 270.1 (51%)

Operating income as % of revenue 8.0% 4.5% –

Interest expense 79.8 70.0 (12%)

Net income 334.3 153.9 (54%)

Diluted earnings per share 1.06 .48 (55%)

Debt-to-capital ratio 25.9% 28.1% –

Total debt 762.6 826.1 8%

Cash flow from operations 419.9 202.4 (52%)

Stockholders’ equity 2,186.1 2,112.7 (3%)

Year-end stock price 14.63 12.54 (14%)

Shares outstanding 315.4M 320.6M 2%

Number of employees 36,900 38,900 5%

*Before fourth-quarter charges and extraordinary items.
**Excluding de-emphasized commodity hardware sales in 2000, revenue was essentially unchanged.
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Fast Fact: Every other check written in the world is processed using
Unisys solutions.

3

Q: Why did Unisys take actions late in 2001
to eliminate 3,750 positions when similar
actions were taken the year before?
A: We entered 2001 believing that global
spending on information services and tech-
nology would increase, and that we had the
right resources and cost structure in place to
take advantage of a growing market. The
reality of 2001 was much different. Economic
uncertainty led organizations to cut back on
capital expenditures, leading to the worst
downturn in technology spending in decades.
We had to ensure that we would continue to
be profitable and cost-competitive in this
environment. That meant re-evaluating our
cost structure and making sure we had the
right skills and resources to succeed. The
decision to reduce our workforce, while very
difficult, was necessary to position us appro-
priately for the future.

Q: Why is Unisys so focused on the 
outsourcing market?
A: Outsourcing contracts are multiyear
engagements under which we take over
management of a client’s technology opera-
tions, business processes or networks. As
long-term relationships, these contracts pro-
vide an annuity base of recurring revenue.
We enter each year knowing that we have
this business, and this gives us greater 
financial visibility and predictability.

When I joined Unisys four years ago, we
did not have the financial flexibility to aggres-
sively pursue outsourcing relationships
because our balance sheet was leveraged with
debt. Since then, we have reduced our debt
and interest expense. Our debt-to-capital
ratio, which was nearly 60 percent in 1997, is
now less than half of that. Customers are
entering into five- to 10-year contracts with
us, resulting in outsourcing business with
organizations such as Lloyds TSB, Barclays
Bank, Abbey Life and HSBC Bank.

Q: Why are profit margins so low in your
services business?
A: The primary reason has to do with indus-
trywide weakness in the systems integration
(SI) and consulting market. SI represents
about one-third of our services business, and
like other providers in this market, our busi-
ness has been hurt by the economic slow-
down. Integration projects help our
customers generate revenue, improve service
and become more competitive. In a recession,
organizations typically put these types of pro-
jects on hold because the return on invest-
ment tends to be longer term.

As economic conditions improve, we
believe organizations will turn to SI projects
that are being backlogged. And we will be
ready when the market bounces back.

Q: Sales of the Unisys Enterprise Server
ES7000 grew in 2001, but not at the rate you
expected. Why?
A: In tough economic times, customers
become more conservative in their IT
spending, and it is more difficult to introduce
a new technology like the ES7000. But we
believe the winds are shifting in our favor.
Because of its unique design and standards-
based architecture, the ES7000 offers a com-
pelling value proposition: enterprise-class
performance at about half the cost of propri-
etary Unix systems. Today, hundreds of cus-
tomers are realizing the benefits of the
ES7000 in production environments.

The ES7000 realized sales of about $125
million in 2001, with 40 percent of our wins
from customers who are new to Unisys. And
we’re seeing a growing number of repeat
orders and multiunit orders. We expect
ES7000 sales to approximately double in 2002.

“As long-term 
relationships, 
[outsourcing] 
contracts provide
an annuity base 
of recurring 
revenue. We 
enter each year 
knowing that 
we have this 
business, and 
this gives us 
greater financial 
predictability.”

Larry Weinbach
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Unisys provides and manages computing infrastructures and
applications, with services ranging from mission-critical business
processes to e-business applications.

•For the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Unisys consolidated 19 data 
centers and now manages a single data center. This has allowed the 
commonwealth to redirect resources to other IT initiatives.

•UnitedHealth Group, a leader in healthcare services in the United 
States, uses Unisys remote facilities management to better serve more 
than 7 million of its clients.

•Unisys, Barclays Bank plc, Lloyds TSB and HSBC Bank plc have 
formed a joint venture called intelligent Processing Solutions Limited 
(iPSL) in the United Kingdom. iPSL provides high-volume payment 
processing and back-office support to 10 institutions, processing 67 
percent of all checks in the United Kingdom.

•U.K.-based Abbey Life uses Unisys services to administer more 
than 1.5 million insurance policies.

Unisys designs and manages IT environments, delivering network
consulting and consolidated services — including helpdesk support,
remote network and system management, security management and
infrastructure support. These services create strategic business value 
for our customers.

•Hollywood-based Paramount Pictures relies on desktop and helpdesk
support managed by Unisys.

•For the United Kingdom’s Royal Navy, Unisys integrated and now 
manages a complete local-area network infrastructure.

•Taiwan’s Infoserve Group, a leading global provider of integrated 
communications and Internet services, relies on Unisys to implement 
and manage its network infrastructure.

•Interlegis, Brazil’s governmental coordination agency, uses a secure 
multimedia network implemented by Unisys to link the nation’s federal
and state administrations, in order to speed the legislative process and 
serve citizens more efficiently.

Alcatel, American Int’l Group Inc., Ariba Inc., Avaya Inc., Baltimore Technologies, BEA Systems Inc., 
British Telecommunications plc, Check Point Software Technologies Ltd., Cisco Systems Inc., Computer
Associates Int’l Inc., Dell Computer Corp., EMC Corp., Exult Inc., Hitachi Ltd., ICL, Intel Corp., 
Internet Security Systems Inc., Intershop Communications AG, Microsoft Corp., Nokia, Nortel Networks,
Novell Inc., Oracle Corp., Qwest Communications Int’l Inc., SAP AG, Siebel Systems Inc.

Services

Services

Helping You Create Business Value.
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As a leading global consulting partner and systems integrator,
Unisys delivers services and solutions to customers worldwide in
financial services, transportation, communications, media and
other commercial industries, as well as the public sector.

•DaimlerChrysler and Unisys have devised a customer relationship 
management strategy to support marketing programs that help 
drive sales in Latin America.

•Taiwan’s Chang Hwa Bank selected Unisys banking solutions 
and services to address changing customer needs influenced by
international financial trends.

•Unisys has joined with American Airlines, Roadway Express,
United Airlines and UTI Worldwide to form Integres Global 
Logistics. This venture is the first to provide delivery of heavy 
freight through e-business solutions.

•In the United Kingdom, the Metropolitan Police Service has 
teamed with Unisys to implement a criminal investigation system 
that links information between police forces to help solve crimes.

Unisys develops servers that provide enterprise-class scalability and
availability for Microsoft environments and our own enterprise-
server operating systems.

•Dexia Bank Nederland in the Netherlands houses its e-brokerage 
solution on Unisys ES7000 systems. These systems provide high 
performance and reliability, while streamlining the management 
of more than 25 applications.

•A ClearPath Plus server runs Unisys mainframe and Microsoft 
solutions for the City of Las Vegas, integrating the environments 
and making them easier to manage.

•Banco Edwards in Chile uses Unisys ES7000 systems as part of its 
new Internet banking and marketing program, consolidating the 
workload of 28 commodity servers and enhancing its existing 
customer database.

•The U.S. Department of Agriculture uses the Unisys ES7000 to 
provide 24x7 Web access to its human resources and benefit 
programs for more than 60,000 employees.

Accenture, Cap Gemini Ernst & Young, Compaq Computer Corp., Computer Sciences Corp., Deloitte
Consulting, EDS, Hewlett-Packard Co., IBM, KPMG Consulting LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Siemens Nixdorf,
Sun Microsystems Inc.

Unisys provides end-to-end services and solutions in outsourcing, network services
and systems integration, enabled by state-of-the-art enterprise-server technology. 
We support critical operations for businesses and governments around the world,
helping customers to realize value creation in today’s competitive environment.

Fast Fact: More than 1,500 government agencies around the world use Unisys services.

Services

Technology



UBS AG: Banking in
the New Economy 

UBS is a pre-eminent global
investment services firm and
the leading bank in Switzer-
land. The firm processes 
3.66 billion transactions
annually for all varieties of
banking businesses, and is
on the cutting edge of large-
scale e-services. For UBS in
Switzerland, Unisys provides
infrastructure and services
for an efficient, secure and
reliable computing environ-
ment. Unisys enterprise
servers, consultancy and
technical support skills
enable UBS to control IT
costs, increase processing
speed, enhance customer
relationship management and
focus on strategic projects.

Unisys team members (from left)

Beat Weber, André Guyer and

Mehdi Modarres have provided

services and technology to help

UBS AG succeed in the highly

competitive financial services

market.

Fast Fact: Over 80 percent of the world’s largest banks 
count on Unisys.
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Fast Fact: Over 80 percent of the world’s largest banks 
count on Unisys.
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The Wall Street
Journal: Publishing
Up-to-the-Minute
News

The Wall Street Journal, 
the flagship publication of
Dow Jones & Co., is the
business world’s most-read
news source, both online 
and in print. Unisys provides
The Wall Street Journal with
improved editorial workflow,
electronic pagination,
complex zoning and edition
handling, and operational
flexibility. With Unisys
solutions, the newspaper 
can leave pages open longer
in the production cycle. 
This allows editors to easily
include late-breaking news
and gives readers more
timely news coverage. 

Holger Hofmann of Unisys has

served as senior project manager

for the implementation of Unisys

solutions at The Wall Street

Journal, working with a team of

experts from Dow Jones and Unisys.

Fast Fact: More than 200 leading newspapers in 17 countries spread the news 
with help from Unisys Publishing Solutions.
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La-Z-Boy: Easing
Into Corporate
Growth

With annual sales of 
$2.2 billion, more than 50
locations, and an inter-
national presence, La-Z-Boy
Inc. handles a tremendous
amount of information. To
manage that information, 
the furniture manufacturer
consolidated the workload of
12 distributed servers into
one Unisys Enterprise Server
ES7000. As the company
grows, the ES7000 helps 
La-Z-Boy process more
transactions without adding
hardware. The Unisys server,
as well as support services,
has helped La-Z-Boy reduce
costs, improve data sharing
and increase system
availability.

Working together, Mark Richards

(left) and Jeff Smith (right) of 

La-Z-Boy and Meredith Hughes

(center) of Unisys have enabled 

the furniture giant to provide

unified access to mission-critical

applications.

Fast Fact: Unisys has helped drive the computer revolution, from the company’s
29,000-pound UNIVAC 1 in 1951 — the first commercial large-scale system — to the
swift, powerful Unisys Enterprise Server ES7000 today.
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Fast Fact: 9,000 Unisys people support networks in 100 countries.

Quest Diagnostics:
Enabling Quality
Healthcare Service

Unisys supports the distrib-
uted desktop environment of
Quest Diagnostics, the United
States’ leading provider of
diagnostic testing, informa-
tion and services to health-
care professionals. This 
$3.6 billion clinical testing
company takes advantage of 
a full range of distributed
computing outsourcing
services from Unisys,
including program manage-
ment, helpdesk support and
technology maintenance.
Through these services, Quest
Diagnostics can provide a
consistent level of desktop
support for users, reduce
support costs, and empower
its IT staff to focus on
strategic business initiatives.

From left, George Hynes of Unisys

and Gerald C. Marrone and Jim

Cunneen of Quest Diagnostics help

Quest Diagnostics manage its

desktop environment to maximize

the healthcare testing services the

company provides.
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Fast Fact: 200 airlines, including 19 of the top 25, rely on Unisys solutions.

Air Canada: Taking
Flight – Internet Air 
Cargo Services 

Air Canada is Canada’s
premier air carrier, providing
air transportation for
passengers and cargo to
destinations worldwide.
Outsourcing its logistics
processes to Unisys lets 
Air Canada provide timely,
reliable cargo services to 
its shippers. Because the 
air carrier makes shipping
information available
through the Internet,
shippers can track cargo
through to its destina-
tion. With Unisys, Air 
Canada is reducing 
freight-processing costs,
increasing operational
efficiency, and becoming
more visible to major 
customers through 
the Internet.

For more than 10 years, Jill 

Askey (left), project manager,

Unisys, and Lisette Schweiger,

manager, business systems cargo,

Air Canada, have been key 

players on a team that has 

planned and implemented freight

solutions, cargo solutions, data

warehousing and other services 

for the air carrier.



Our success depends on our people. Unisys employees around the world provide the
necessary services and technology skills, combined with consulting experience and
industry knowledge, to integrate services, networks, technology and solutions for our
customers. Unisys teams help organizations operate more competitively and become
leaders in their industries.

As a team leader for global
outsourcing projects, Alan
Lewis has been responsible
for support of Unisys
customers such as Abbey Life,
a major insurance provider
in the United Kingdom.

An engineering project
manager, Michele
Moschitta works on  

development of
CMP, the Unisys    

server architecture
for enterprise-class
business computing
that is used by
businesses such as
cosmetics company
Mary Kay Inc.

Katie Wiley is a Unisys
systems integration
consultant, currently
working on an e-services 
development project 
for Reliance Standard
Life Insurance Co. in
North America.

Xavier Vallejo, a
director of global
network services,
oversees Unisys service
delivery in Mexico 
and aids customers 
of Managed Network
Services, such as Ford
Motor Co.

Fast Fact: 39,000 Unisys employees serve customers in more than 100 countries.
11
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Unisys fosters an environment of
continuous learning for employees
worldwide, blending on-the-job,
classroom and e-learning
approaches. This ensures that our
employees develop the skills our
customers need most, and that our
people are knowledgeable about
leading-edge innovations that
differentiate our solutions. 

In 2001, more than 70 percent 
of our employees received
education through our corporate
university, which aligns its learning
strategy with our business strategy.
The skills of every employee are
evaluated annually, ensuring that
Unisys has the critical business,
services and technology expertise
that will boost our customers – and
our business – to greater success.

By blending classroom and e-learning tactics,

Unisys offers effective education programs that

can be quickly and easily delivered to employees

regardless of their location. From left: Arvin

Devaraj, Norman Schuster, Barbara Osder and

Denise Bowe.

Unisys employees work 

in teams to engineer new,

creative solutions that 

give our customers a

competitive edge in their

industry. From left: Daniel

Wright, Daniel Heine and

Michelle Cunningham.

Fast Fact: Since 1989, Unisys clients around the world have won 23 awards from
The Computerworld Honors Program for Unisys-supplied solutions.
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Unisys Corporation

Overview
The company faced a very challenging economic environment in 2001, compounded by the events of September 11,
2001. In this environment, many organizations delayed planned information technology purchases. This resulted in
a falloff in demand industry wide for certain information technology products and services. For the company, this
was particularly the case in certain of its key markets: airlines and travel, financial services, and communications,
with the impact most pronounced in high-end enterprise servers and in systems integration and consulting projects.
As a result, the company took actions to further reduce its cost structure. In the fourth quarter of 2001, the
company recorded a pretax charge of $276.3 million, or $.64 per share, to cover a work-force reduction of
approximately 3,750 people and other actions. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the company recorded a pretax charge
of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted share, primarily for a work-force reduction. Included in the charge for both
years was an early retirement incentive for certain eligible groups of U.S. employees. See Note 4 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results of operations
In 2001, the company recorded a net loss of $67.1 million, or $.21 per share, compared with net income of $225.0
million, or $.71 per diluted share, in 2000. The results for 2001 include the fourth-quarter pretax charges of $276.3
million, or $.64 per share, as well as an extraordinary charge of $17.2 million, or $.05 per share, for the early
extinguishment of debt. Excluding these items, diluted earnings per share in 2001 was $.48. The results for 2000
include the fourth-quarter pretax charge of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted share, as well as an extraordinary
charge of $19.8 million, or $.06 per diluted share, for the early extinguishment of debt. Excluding these items,
diluted earnings per share in 2000 was $1.06. The results for 1999 included a one-time tax benefit of $22.0 million,
or $.07 per common share, related to a U.S. Treasury income tax regulation, as well as an extraordinary charge of
$12.1 million, or $.04 per diluted share, for the early extinguishment of debt. Excluding these items, diluted earnings
per share in 1999 was $1.56.

The following comparisons of income statement categories exclude the fourth-quarter charges and
extraordinary items in all years.

Revenue for 2001 was $6.02 billion compared to $6.89 billion in 2000 and $7.54 billion in 1999. Revenue in 2001
decreased 13% from the prior year, and revenue in 2000 decreased 9% from 1999. Excluding the negative impact of
foreign currency fluctuations, revenue in 2001 declined 9% and revenue in 2000 decreased 5%. The decrease in
revenue in 2001 was principally due to lower sales of de-emphasized commodity products, enterprise servers and
systems integration. Revenue from international operations in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $3.42 billion, $4.01 billion
and $4.19 billion, respectively. Revenue from U.S. operations was $2.60 billion in 2001, $2.88 billion in 2000 and
$3.35 billion in 1999.

At December 31, 2001, the company owned approximately 28% of the voting common stock of Nihon Unisys,
Ltd., a publicly traded Japanese company (“NUL”). The company accounts for this investment by the equity
method. NUL is the exclusive supplier of the company’s hardware and software products in Japan. The company
considers its investment in NUL to be of a long-term strategic nature. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, both direct and indirect sales to NUL were approximately $340 million, $530 million and $490 million,
respectively.



At December 31, 2001, the market value of the company’s investment in NUL was approximately $188 million
and the amount recorded on the company’s books was $210.5 million. The market value is determined by both the
quoted price per share of NUL’s shares on the Tokyo stock exchange and the current exchange rate of the Japanese
yen to the U.S. dollar. At any point in time, the company’s book value may be higher or lower than market value.
The company would only reflect impairment in this investment if the loss in value of the investment were deemed
to be other than a temporary decline.

Total gross profit percent was 27.4% in 2001, 31.2% in 2000 and 35.6% in 1999. The decrease in gross profit
margin over this period primarily reflected a lower percentage of revenue from high-margin enterprise server sales
as the company continued to shift its business model to emphasize lower-margin but higher-growth services
businesses, such as outsourcing. Additionally in 2001, the gross profit margin was impacted by the falloff in demand

industry-wide for certain information technology products and services.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1.07 billion in 2001 (17.8% of revenue), $1.28 billion in 2000
(18.5% of revenue) and $1.38 billion in 1999 (18.4% of revenue). The decreases reflected tight controls placed on
discretionary spending during these periods. The decline in the current year also reflected the benefits of the

personnel reduction actions announced in the fourth quarter of 2000.

Research and development expenses in 2001 were $303.9 million compared to $315.4 million in 2000 and $339.4

million in 1999.

In 2001, the company reported operating income of $270.1 million (4.5% of revenue) compared to $553.0
million (8.0% of revenue) in 2000 and $960.7 million (12.7% of revenue) in 1999. The declines reflected lower sales
of high-margin enterprise servers and systems integration services, offset in part by tight cost controls.

Information by business segment for 2001, 2000 and 1999 is presented below:
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(Millions of dollars) Total Eliminations Services Technology

2001
Customer revenue $6,018.1 $4,444.6 $1,573.5
Intersegment $ (363.4) 73.8 289.6

Total revenue $6,018.1 $ (363.4) $4,518.4 $1,863.1
Gross profit percent 27.4% 19.7% 43.0%
Operating income percent 4.5% 2.1% 11.6%

2000
Customer revenue $6,885.0 $4,741.6 $2,143.4
Intersegment $ (437.2) 46.6 390.6

Total revenue $6,885.0 $ (437.2) $4,788.2 $2,534.0
Gross profit percent 31.2% 21.6% 44.7%
Operating income percent 8.0% 1.7% 17.7%

1999
Customer revenue $7,544.6 $5,287.0 $2,257.6
Intersegment $ (577.5) 65.6 511.9

Total revenue $7,544.6 $ (577.5) $5,352.6 $2,769.5
Gross profit percent 35.6% 25.6% 48.1%
Operating income percent 12.7% 7.9% 20.3%

Gross profit percent and operating income percent are as a percent of total revenue.
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In the services segment, customer revenue was $4.44 billion in 2001, $4.74 billion in 2000 and $5.29 billion in
1999. The revenue decline over this period primarily reflected two factors: (a) weak demand industry-wide for
systems integration services and proprietary maintenance, partially offset by increased demand in outsourcing, and
(b) the company’s de-emphasis in year 2001 of commodity hardware sales within network services contracts. The
6% decrease in customer revenue in 2001 from 2000 reflected reduced commodity hardware sales as well as declines
in systems integration and proprietary maintenance, offset in part by an increase in outsourcing revenue. In 2001,
demand for systems integration weakened as organizations cut back on discretionary information technology
projects to focus on cost reduction initiatives. The 10% decrease in 2000 from 1999 reflected declines in systems
integration and proprietary maintenance revenue, offset in part by an increase in networking services revenue.
Services gross profit declined to 19.7% in 2001 from 21.6% in 2000 and 25.6% in 1999. The decrease in gross profit
was largely due to a lower content of higher-margin systems integration and proprietary maintenance revenue. In
addition, gross profit in 2001 was negatively impacted by the startup of several large outsourcing contracts. Due to
continuing tight controls on spending, operating profit for 2001 increased to 2.1% from 1.7% in 2000. The
operating profit percent for 1999 was 7.9%. The decrease in operating profit in 2000 from 1999 was principally due
to the gross profit decline.

In the technology segment, customer revenue was $1.57 billion in 2001, $2.14 billion in 2000 and $2.26 billion 
in 1999. The revenue decline over this period was primarily driven by two factors: (a) lower sales of ClearPath
enterprise servers, reflecting weak economic conditions, as well as the company’s transition to a new generation of
product families based on the Unisys Cellular MultiProcessing (CMP) architecture, and (b) lower sales of de-
emphasized low-margin commodity hardware products as the company focused on high-end server products.
The 27% decline in customer revenue in 2001 from 2000 reflected the impact of the global downturn in
information technology spending on sales of high-end server products, as well as lower commodity hardware sales.
The 5% decline in customer revenue in 2000 from 1999 was primarily due to a decline in ClearPath enterprise
server revenue. The gross profit percent was 43.0% in 2001, 44.7% in 2000 and 48.1% in 1999. The gross profit
declines were due in large part to lower sales of high-margin ClearPath systems. Operating profit in this segment
was 11.6% in 2001, 17.7% in 2000 and 20.3% in 1999. The decrease in operating profits was principally due to the
gross profit decline.

Interest expense declined to $70.0 million in 2001 from $79.8 million in 2000, and $127.8 million in 1999. The
decline in 2001 was principally due to lower average borrowings and lower average interest rates. The decline in
2000 from 1999 was principally due to lower average interest rates as well as the effect of interest rate swaps
(discussed below).

Other income (expense), net, which can vary from year to year, was income of $29.7 million in 2001, income of
$33.4 million in 2000 and an expense of $62.6 million in 1999. The difference in 2001 from 2000 was principally
due to discounts on higher sales of receivables and lower equity income, offset in part by higher foreign exchange
gains. The difference in 2000 compared to 1999 was principally due to higher equity and interest income in 2000
and charges in 1999 related to legal actions.

Income before income taxes in 2001 was $229.8 million compared to $506.6 million in 2000 and $770.3 million
in 1999.

The provision for income taxes in 2001 was $75.9 million (33.0% effective tax rate) compared to $172.3 million
(34.0% effective tax rate) in 2000 and $269.5 million (35.0% tax rate) in 1999. It is expected that the effective tax
rate will be 33.0% for 2002.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141
requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001
and prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interests method. SFAS No. 141 also includes guidance on the initial
recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in a business combination that is
completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 no longer permits the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Instead, these assets must be reviewed annually for impairment in accordance with this statement.
The company is required to adopt SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002. In anticipation of adoption, the company
reclassified the amount of goodwill as a separate line item in its balance sheet. During the first half of 2002, the 
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company will perform the first of the required impairment tests of goodwill. The company has not yet determined
what effect, if any, this initial test will have on the company’s consolidated financial position or consolidated results
of operations. An impairment charge, if any, from this initial test will be reported as a change in accounting
principle. As a result of adoption of SFAS No. 142, all amortization of goodwill as a charge to earnings ($16.5
million in 2001, or $.04 per share) will be eliminated.

Effective April 1, 2001, the company adopted SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” This statement revised the accounting standards for securitizations and
other transfers of financial assets and collateral and requires certain disclosures. Adoption of SFAS No. 140 had no
effect on the company’s consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

Financial condition
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2001 were $325.9 million compared to $378.0 million at December 31, 2000.

During 2001, cash provided by operations was $202.4 million compared to $419.9 million in 2000 principally
reflecting a decline in profitability. Cash expenditures related to both current and prior-year restructuring actions
(which are included in operating activities) in 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $71.5 million, $26.3 million and $44.6
million, respectively, and are expected to be approximately $125 to $130 million in 2002, principally for work-force
reductions and facility costs. Personnel reductions in 2001 related to both current and prior-year restructuring
actions were approximately 2,500 and are expected to be approximately 1,500 in 2002.

Cash used for investing activities in 2001 was $325.6 million compared to $270.9 million for 2000. During 2001,
both proceeds from investments and purchases of investments, which represent primarily foreign exchange contract
activity, increased from the prior year as a result of shortening the duration of individual contracts. In addition, 2000
includes $18.5 million net proceeds from the termination of the euro and Japanese yen swaps as described below.

Cash provided by financing activities during 2001 was $71.6 million compared to cash usage of $217.3 million in
2000. The current year includes net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt of $536.5 million and payment of
long-term debt of $370.8 million, as described below. In 2000, the company used $448.0 million to repay long-term
debt. The cash usage was funded through a combination of cash and short-term borrowings.

At December 31, 2001, total debt was $826.1 million, an increase of $63.5 million from December 31, 2000. At
December 31, 2001, the debt-to-capital ratio was 28.1% compared to 25.9% at December 31, 2000.

During 2001, the company issued $400 million of 8 1/8% senior notes due 2006 and $150 million of 7 1/4%
senior notes due 2005. In June 2001, the company completed a cash tender offer for $319.2 million principal amount
of its 11 3/4% senior notes due 2004 and in October 2001, the company redeemed, at a premium, the remaining $15.0
million outstanding principal amount of such notes. As a result of these actions, the company recorded an
extraordinary after-tax charge of $17.2 million, net of $9.3 million tax benefit, or $.05 per share, for the premium
paid, unamortized debt-related expenses and transaction costs.

In March 2001, the company entered into a new three-year $450 million credit agreement which replaced the
$400 million three-year facility that was due to expire in June 2001. This agreement was amended in November
2001 to modify certain financial covenants to accommodate the company’s fourth-quarter charge, discussed above.
As of December 31, 2001, there were no borrowings under this facility and the entire $450 million was available for
borrowings. Borrowings under the agreement bear interest based on the then current LIBOR or prime rates and
the company’s credit rating. The credit agreement contains financial and other covenants, including maintenance
of certain financial ratios, a minimum level of net worth and limitations on certain types of transactions. Events of
default under the credit agreement include failure to perform covenants, material adverse change, change of control
and default under other debt aggregating at least $25 million. If an event of default were to occur under the credit
agreement, the lenders would be entitled to declare all amounts borrowed under it immediately due and payable.
The occurrence of an event of default under the credit agreement could also cause the acceleration of obligations
under certain other agreements and the termination of the company’s U.S. trade accounts receivable facility,
described below.
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As more fully described in Note 11 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the company may have an
additional obligation under an operating lease for one of its facilities.

At December 31, 2001, the company had outstanding standby letters of credit and surety bonds of approximately
$230 million related to performance and payment guarantees. Based on experience with these arrangements, the
company believes that any obligations that may arise will not be material.

The company may, from time to time, redeem, tender for, or repurchase its debt securities in the open market
or in privately negotiated transactions depending upon availability, market conditions and other factors.

The company has on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) an effective registration
statement covering $150 million of debt or equity securities, which enables the company to be prepared for future
market opportunities. The company intends to file a new registration statement with the SEC during the first
quarter of 2002 covering $1.5 billion of securities (inclusive of the $150 million already registered). The company
cannot determine when the SEC will declare this registration statement effective.

Stockholders’ equity decreased $73.4 million during 2001, principally reflecting the net loss of $67.1 million and
currency translation of $63.1 million, offset in part by $52.0 million for issuance of stock under stock option and
other plans and $4.6 million of tax benefits related to employee stock plans.

In addition, the company has access to certain uncommitted lines of credit from U.S. banks, and certain
international subsidiaries maintain short-term credit arrangements with banks in accordance with local customary
practice. Other sources of short-term funding are operational cash flows, including customer prepayments, and the
company’s U.S. trade accounts receivable facility. Using this facility, the company sells, on an ongoing basis, up to
$225 million of its eligible U.S. trade accounts receivable through a wholly owned subsidiary, Unisys Funding
Corporation I. The facility is renewable annually at the purchasers’ option and expires in December 2003. See Note
5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2001, the company has met all of the covenants and conditions under its various lending and
funding agreements. Since the company believes that it will continue to meet these covenants and conditions, the
company believes that it has adequate sources and availability of short-term funding to meet its expected cash
requirements.

In April 2000, the company redeemed all of its $399.5 million outstanding 12% senior notes due 2003 at the
stated redemption price of 106% of principal. As a result, the company recorded an extraordinary after-tax charge
of $19.8 million, or $.06 per diluted share, for the call premium and unamortized debt expense.

In 2000, the company terminated its interest rate swaps and currency swaps for euro and Japanese yen which
were established in 1999. The currency swaps were designated as hedges of the foreign currency exposure on the
company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries and equity investments. As a result of these terminations, the
company received net cash of $18.5 million and recognized a pretax loss of $2.7 million. The interest expense benefit
related to these swaps amounted to approximately $16 million in 2000.

As described more fully in Notes 4, 9 and 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, at December 31,
2001 the company had certain cash obligations, which are due as follows:

(Millions of dollars) Total Less than one year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years

Notes payable $ 78.9 $ 78.9
Long-term debt 750.0 $ 550.0 $ 200.0
Capital lease obligations 4.3 2.2 $ 1.6 .4 .1
Operating leases, net of sublease income 679.6 128.3 192.2 104.3 254.8
Work-force reductions 138.1 119.1 19.0

Total $1,650.9 $ 328.5 $ 212.8 $ 654.7 $ 454.9



Market risk
The company has exposure to interest rate risk from its short-term and long-term debt. In general, the company’s
long-term debt is fixed rate and the short-term debt is variable rate. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for components of the company’s long-term debt. The company believes that the market risk
from changes in interest rates (assuming a hypothetical 10% movement in these rates) would not be material to the
fair value of these financial instruments, or the related cash flows, or future results of operations.

The company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risks. The company uses derivative financial
instruments to reduce its exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The derivative
instruments used are foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange options. See Note 12 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the company’s derivative financial instruments.

The company has performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign
currency exchange rates applied to these derivative financial instruments described above. As of December 31, 2001
and 2000, the analysis indicated that such market movements would have reduced the estimated fair value of these
derivative financial instruments by approximately $25 million and $10 million, respectively.

Based on changes in the timing and amount of interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate movements and
the company’s actual exposures and hedges, actual gains and losses in the future may differ from the above analysis.

Critical accounting policies

Outsourcing

In recent years, the company’s outsourcing business has increased significantly. Typically the terms of these
contracts are between three and ten years. In a number of these arrangements, the company hires certain of the
customers’ employees and often becomes responsible for the related employee obligations, such as pension and
severance commitments. In addition, system development activity on outsourcing contracts may require significant
up-front investments by the company. The company funds these investments, and any employee-related obligations,
from customer prepayments and operating cash flow. Also, in the early phases of these contracts, gross margins may
be lower than in later years when the work force and facilities have been rationalized for efficient operations, and an
integrated systems solution has been implemented.

Revenue under these contracts is recognized when the company performs the services or processes transactions
in accordance with contractual performance standards. Customer prepayments (even if nonrefundable) are
deferred (classified as a liability) and recognized  over future periods as services are delivered or performed.

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally charged to expense as incurred. However, direct costs incurred
related to the inception of an outsourcing contract are deferred and charged to expense over the contract term.
These costs consist principally of initial customer set-up and employment obligations related to employees assumed.
In addition, the costs of equipment and software, some of which is internally developed, is capitalized and
depreciated over the shorter of their life or the term of the contract.

At December 31, 2001, the net capitalized amount related to outsourcing contracts was $188.0 million, consisting
of $65.2 million reported in properties and $122.8 million of net contract-related costs reported in other long-term
assets. The contract-related costs are tested for recoverability quarterly.

Systems integration

The company recognizes revenue and profit as long-term systems integration contracts progress using the percentage-
of-completion method of accounting, which relies on estimates of total expected contract revenues and costs. The
company follows this method since reasonably dependable estimates of the revenue and costs applicable to various
elements of a contract can be made. Since the financial reporting of these contracts depends on estimates, which are
assessed continually during the term of these contracts, recognized revenues and profit are subject to revisions as the
contract progresses to completion. Revisions in profit estimates are reflected in the period in which the facts that give
rise to the revision become known. Accordingly, favorable changes in estimates result in additional revenue and profit 
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recognition, and unfavorable changes in estimates result in a reduction of recognized revenue and profits. When
estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred on a contract on completion, a provision for the expected loss is recorded
in the period in which the loss becomes evident. As work progresses under a loss contract, revenue continues to be
recognized, and a portion of the contract costs incurred in each period is charged to the contract loss reserve.

Taxes

The company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” which
requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary
differences between the book and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 also requires that deferred
tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax asset will not be realized.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the company had deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities of $1,376
million and $1,299 million, respectively. For the reasons cited below, at December 31, 2001 and 2000, management
determined that it is more likely than not that $1,034 million and $990 million, respectively, of such assets will be
realized, resulting in a valuation allowance of $342 million and $309 million, respectively.

The company evaluates quarterly the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its valuation allowance
and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization
are the company’s forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented
to realize the net deferred tax assets. The company has used tax planning strategies to realize or renew net deferred
tax assets in order to avoid the potential loss of future tax benefits.

Approximately $3.2 billion of future taxable income (predominately U.S.) ultimately is needed to realize the net
deferred tax assets at December 31, 2001. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income might affect the ultimate
realization of the net deferred tax assets. Factors that may affect the company’s ability to achieve sufficient
forecasted taxable income include, but are not limited to, the following: increased competition, a decline in sales or
margins, loss of market share, delays in product availability or technological obsolescence.

In addition, the company operates within multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these
jurisdictions. These audits can involve complex issues, which may require an extended period of time to resolve. In
management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years.

Pensions

The company accounts for its defined benefit pension plans in accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’
Accounting for Pensions,” which requires that amounts recognized in financial statements be determined on an
actuarial basis. A substantial portion of the company’s pension amounts relate to its defined benefit plan in the
United States. As permitted by SFAS No. 87, the company uses a calculated value of plan assets (which is further
described below). SFAS No. 87 requires that the effects of the performance of the pension plan’s assets and changes
in pension liability discount rates on the company’s computation of pension income (expense) be amortized over
future periods.

The most significant element in determining the company’s pension income (expense) in accordance with SFAS
No. 87 is the expected return on plan assets. In 2001, the company has assumed that the expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets will be 10%. Over the long term, the company’s pension plan assets have earned in excess of
10%. The assumed long-term rate of return on assets is applied to a calculated value of plan assets, which
recognizes changes in the fair value of plan assets in a systematic manner over four years. This produces the
expected return on plan assets that is included in pension income (expense). The difference between this expected
return and the actual return on plan assets is deferred. The net deferral of past asset gains (losses) affects the
calculated value of plan assets and, ultimately, future pension income (expense). The plan assets have earned a rate
of return substantially less than 10% in the last two years. Should this trend continue, the company would be
required to reconsider its assumed expected rate of return on plan assets. If the company were to lower this rate,
future pension income would likely decline.



At the end of each year, the company determines the discount rate to be used to calculate the present value of
plan liabilities. The discount rate is an estimate of the current interest rate at which the pension liabilities could be
effectively settled at the end of the year. In estimating this rate, the company looks to rates of return on high-
quality, fixed-income investments that receive one of the two highest ratings given by a recognized ratings agency.
At December 31, 2001, the company determined this rate to be 7.50%, a decrease of 50 basis points from the rate used
at December 31, 2000. Changes in discount rates over the past three years have not materially affected pension
income (expense), and the net effect of changes in the discount rate, as well as the net effect of other changes in
actuarial assumptions and experience, have been deferred, in accordance with SFAS No. 87.

At December 31, 2001, the company’s consolidated prepaid pension asset was $1.2 billion, up from $1.1 billion at
the end of 2000. The increase was principally due to the recognition of pension income. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the company recognized consolidated pretax pension income of $170.0 million, up from $139.0
million in 2000. The company currently expects that consolidated pension income for 2002 will not be materially
different from 2001.

Factors that may affect future results
From time to time, the company provides information containing “forward-looking” statements, as defined in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All forward-looking statements rely on assumptions and are subject
to risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the company’s actual results to differ materially from
expectations. In addition to changes in general economic and business conditions, acts of war, terrorism and
natural disasters, these other factors include, but are not limited to, those discussed below.

The company operates in an industry characterized by aggressive competition, rapid technological change,
evolving technology standards, and short product life-cycles. Future operating results will depend on the company’s
ability to design, develop, introduce, deliver, or obtain new and innovative products and services on a timely and
cost-effective basis; on its ability to succeed in the high-end information technology services segment; on its ability
to effectively manage the shift in its technology business into higher growth, lower-margin standards-based server
products; on its ability to mitigate the effects of competitive pressures and volatility in the information services and
technology industry on revenues, pricing and margins; and on its ability to successfully attract and retain highly
skilled people. In addition, future operating results could be impacted by market demand for and acceptance of the
company’s service and product offerings.

A number of the company’s contracts are long-term contracts for network services, outsourcing, help desk and
similar services, for which volumes are not guaranteed. Future results will depend upon the company’s ability to
meet performance levels over the terms of these contracts.

Certain of the company’s systems integration contracts are fixed-price contracts under which the company
assumes the risk for delivery of the contracted services at an agreed-upon price. Future results will depend on the
company’s ability to profitably perform these services contracts and obtain new contracts.

The company frequently enters into contracts with governmental entities. Associated risks and uncertainties
include the availability of appropriated funds and contractual provisions allowing governmental entities to
terminate agreements at their discretion before the end of the contract terms.

The company has commercial relationships with suppliers, channel partners and other parties that have
complementary products, services, or skills. Future results will depend in part on the performance and capabilities
of these third parties. Future results will also depend upon the ability of external suppliers to deliver materials at
reasonable prices and in a timely manner and on the financial condition of, and the company’s relationship with,
distributors and other indirect channel partners.

Approximately 57% of the company’s total revenue derives from international operations. The risk of doing
business internationally includes foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, changes in political or economic
conditions, trade protection measures, and import or export licensing requirements.

21



22

Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31 (Millions, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999

Revenue $6,018.1 $6,885.0 $7,544.6

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue 4,534.8 4,795.9 4,859.9

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,156.3 1,328.7 1,384.6

Research and development expenses 331.5 333.6 339.4

6,022.6 6,458.2 6,583.9

Operating income (loss) (4.5) 426.8 960.7

Interest expense 70.0 79.8 127.8

Other income (expense), net 28.0 32.0 (62.6)

Income (loss) before income taxes (46.5) 379.0 770.3

Provision for income taxes 3.4 134.2 247.5

Income (loss) before extraordinary items (49.9) 244.8 522.8

Extraordinary items (17.2) (19.8) (12.1)

Net income (loss) (67.1) 225.0 510.7

Dividends on preferred shares 36.7

Earnings (loss) on common shares $ (67.1) $ 225.0 $ 474.0

Earnings (loss) per common share – basic

Before extraordinary items $ (.16) $ .78 $ 1.69

Extraordinary items (.05) (.06) (.04)

Total $ (.21) $ .72 $ 1.65

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted

Before extraordinary items $ (.16) $ .77 $ 1.63

Extraordinary items (.05) (.06) (.04)

Total $ (.21) $ .71 $ 1.59

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 325.9 $ 378.0
Accounts and notes receivable, net 1,093.7 1,247.4
Inventories

Parts and finished equipment 201.6 249.4
Work in process and materials 144.2 176.1

Deferred income taxes 342.6 460.6
Other current assets 96.1 75.5

Total 2,204.1 2,587.0

Properties 1,445.0 1,400.6
Less – Accumulated depreciation 910.8 890.7

Properties, net 534.2 509.9

Investments at equity 212.3 225.8

Marketable software, net 287.9 296.7

Prepaid pension cost 1,221.0 1,063.0

Deferred income taxes 747.8 583.6

Goodwill 159.0 186.3

Other long-term assets 402.8 261.0

Total $ 5,769.1 $ 5,713.3

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Notes payable $ 78.9 $ 209.5
Current maturities of long-term debt 2.2 16.8
Accounts payable 694.9 847.7
Other accrued liabilities 1,312.5 1,278.8
Income taxes payable 234.6 288.3

Total 2,323.1 2,641.1

Long-term debt 745.0 536.3

Other long-term liabilities 588.3 349.8

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, shares issued: 2001 – 322.5; 2000 – 317.3 3.2 3.2
Accumulated deficit (896.5) (829.4)
Other capital 3,712.8 3,656.0
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (706.8) (643.7)

Stockholders’ equity 2,112.7 2,186.1

Total $ 5,769.1 $ 5,713.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities
Income (loss) before extraordinary items $ (49.9) $ 244.8 $ 522.8

Add (deduct) items to reconcile income (loss) before extraordinary
items to net cash provided by operating activities:

Extraordinary items (17.2) (19.8) (12.1)
Depreciation 140.2 135.6 134.5

Amortization:

Marketable software 145.5 115.5 110.9

Goodwill 16.5 21.8 21.7
(Increase) decrease in deferred income taxes, net (44.4) 85.6 (9.9)
Decrease (increase) in receivables, net 72.3 158.2 (244.5)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 79.7 (52.5) 98.0
(Decrease) in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (143.6) (140.0) (81.8)
(Decrease) increase in income taxes payable (58.0) (62.8) 78.2
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 245.6 (2.5) (2.2)
(Increase) in other assets (238.4) (69.2) (159.2)
Other 54.1 5.2 61.2

Net cash provided by operating activities 202.4 419.9 517.6

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from investments 3,028.7 790.4 1,033.8
Purchases of investments (3,009.0) (716.7) (1,013.8)
Investment in marketable software (136.8) (152.4) (122.8)
Capital additions of properties (199.4) (198.3) (219.6)
Purchases of businesses (9.1) (13.9) (53.9)
Proceeds from sales of properties 20.0 47.9

Net cash used for investing activities (325.6) (270.9) (328.4)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 536.5 30.3
Payments of long-term debt (370.8) (448.0) (164.4)
Net (reduction in) proceeds from short-term borrowings (127.7) 179.6 (25.6)
Proceeds from employee stock plans 33.6 51.1 87.7
Dividends paid on preferred shares (59.4)
Redemption of preferred stock (197.0)

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 71.6 (217.3) (328.4)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (.5) (17.7) (13.2)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (52.1) (86.0) (152.4)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 378.0 464.0 616.4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 325.9 $ 378.0 $ 464.0

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
Other, Accumulated

Principally Other Comprehensive
Preferred Common Accumulated Treasury Paid-In Comprehensive Income

(Millions) Stock Stock Deficit Stock Capital Income (Loss) (Loss)

Balance at December 31, 1998 $ 1,444.7 $2.6 $(1,532.2) $(23.6) $2,175.7 $(531.6) (911.6

Conversions to common stock (1,245.3) .4 1,271.2

Redemption of preferred stock (197.0)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans .1 (17.8) 103.4

Net income 510.7 $ 510.7

Other comprehensive loss  (38.8) (38.8)

Comprehensive income $ 471.9

Dividends (32.9)

Tax benefit related to stock plans 66.1

Other (2.4)
)

Balance at December 31, 1999 – 3.1 (1,054.4) (41.4) 3,616.4 (570.4) (911.6

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans .1 (.7) 70.0

Net income 225.0 $ 225.0

Other comprehensive loss  (73.3) (73.3)

Comprehensive income $ 151.7

Unearned compensation .4

Tax benefit related to stock plans 11.3
)

Balance at December 31, 2000 – 3.2 (829.4) (42.1) 3,698.1 (643.7)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans (.2) 52.2

Net loss (67.1) $ (67.1)

Other comprehensive loss  (63.1) (63.1)

Comprehensive loss $ (130.2)

Unearned compensation .2

Tax benefit related to stock plans 4.6

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ – $3.2 $ (896.5) $(42.3) $3,755.1 $(706.8)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Unisys Corporation

Revenue recognition The company
generally recognizes revenue when persua-
sive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is probable.

Revenue from hardware sales is recog-
nized upon shipment and the passage of title.
Outside of the United States, the company
recognizes revenue even if it retains a form 
of title to products delivered to customers,
provided the sole purpose is to enable the
company to recover the products in the 
event of customer payment default, and the 
arrangement does not prohibit the customer’s
use of the product in the ordinary course 
of business.

Revenue from software licenses is recog-
nized at the inception of the initial license
term and upon execution of an extension to
the license term. Revenue for post-contract
software support arrangements, which are
marketed separately, is recorded on a straight-
line basis over the support period for multi-
year contracts and at the inception of
contracts of one year or less.

Revenue from equipment and software
maintenance is recognized on a straight-line
basis as earned over the lives of the 
respective contracts.

For equipment leased to a customer under
an operating lease or a sales-type lease, rev-
enue recognition commences when the
equipment has been shipped, installed and is
ready for use. Revenue for operating leases is
recognized on a monthly basis over the term
of the lease and for sales-type leases at the
inception of the lease term.

Revenue and profit under systems integra-
tion contracts is recognized on the per-
centage-of-completion method of accounting
using the cost-to-cost method or when ser-
vices have been performed, depending on the
nature of the project.  For contracts accounted
for on the percentage-of-completion basis,
revenue and profit recognized in any given
accounting period is based on estimates of 

Summary of significant
accounting policies
Principles of consolidation The
consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of all majority-owned subsidiaries.
Investments in companies representing
ownership interests of 20% to 50% are
accounted for by the equity method.
Use of estimates The preparation 
of financial statements in conformity with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions.
Cash equivalents All short-term
investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are classified as cash
equivalents.
Inventories Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
principally on the first-in, first-out method.
Properties and depreciation
Properties are carried at cost and are
depreciated over the estimated lives of 
such assets using the straight-line method.
Outsourcing equipment is depreciated over 
the shorter of the asset life or the term of the
contract. For other classifications of properties,
the principal rates used are summarized below:

Rate per Year (%)

Buildings 2-5

Machinery and office equipment 5-25

Rental equipment 25

Internal use software 10-33

Advertising costs The company
expenses all advertising costs as they are
incurred. The amount charged to expense
during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $35.6, $38.2
and $48.6 million, respectively.

1
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total projected contract costs, the estimates
are continually reevaluated and revised, when
necessary, throughout the life of a contract.
Any adjustments to revenue and profit due to
changes in estimates are accounted for in the
period of the change in estimate.  When esti-
mates indicate that a loss will be incurred on a
contract on completion, a provision for the
expected loss is recorded in the period in
which the loss becomes evident.

Revenue from time and materials service
contracts and outsourcing contracts is recog-
nized as the services are provided. 
Income taxes Income taxes are 
provided on taxable income at the statutory
rates applicable to such income. Deferred
taxes have not been provided on the
cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries because such amounts are
expected to be reinvested indefinitely.
Marketable software The cost of
development of computer software to 
be sold or leased, incurred subsequent to
establishment of technological feasibility, is
capitalized and amortized to cost of sales over
the estimated revenue-producing lives of the
products, but not in excess of three years
following product release. 
Outsourcing contract costs
Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally
charged to expense as incurred.  However,
direct costs incurred related to the inception
of an outsourcing contract are deferred and
charged to expense over the contract term.
These costs consist principally of initial cus-
tomer set-up and employment obligations
related to employees assumed.  At December
31, 2001 and 2000, $122.8 million and $34.7
million, respectively, of these costs were
reported in other long-term assets.

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess
of cost over fair value of net assets acquired,
which is being amortized on the straight-line
method. Accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $120.0 
and $106.9 million, respectively.

Whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying value of
goodwill may not be recoverable, the com-
pany would prepare projections of future cash
flows for the applicable business. If such pro-
jections indicated that goodwill would not be
recoverable, the company’s carrying value of
goodwill would be reduced by the estimated
excess of such value over projected dis-
counted cash flows, after reduction for the
carrying amount of the other net assets of 
the business.
Translation of foreign currency
The local currency is the functional currency
for most of the company’s international
subsidiaries and, as such, assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. Income and expense items
are translated at average exchange rates
during the year. Translation adjustments
resulting from changes in exchange rates 
are reported in other comprehensive income.
Exchange gains and losses on intercompany
balances of a long-term investment nature are
reported in other comprehensive income. All
other exchange gains and losses on intercom-
pany balances are reported in other income
(expense), net.

For those international subsidiaries
operating in hyper-inflationary economies, 
the U.S. dollar is the functional currency and,
as such, non-monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at historical exchange rates and
monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at current exchange rates. Exchange gains
and losses arising from translation are
included in other income (expense), net.
Reclassifications Certain prior-year
amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the 2001 presentation.
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2 Earnings per share
The following table shows how earnings per share were computed for the three years ended 
December 31, 2001.

Year ended December 31 
(Millions, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999

Basic earnings per share computation

Income (loss) before extraordinary items $ (49.9) $ 244.8 $ 522.8

Less dividends on preferred shares (36.7)

Income (loss) available to common stockholders before extraordinary items (49.9) 244.8 486.1

Extraordinary items (17.2) (19.8) (12.1)

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (67.1) $ 225.0 $ 474.0

Weighted average shares (thousands) 318,207 313,115 287,290

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Before extraordinary items $ (.16) $ .78 $ 1.69

Extraordinary items (.05) (.06) (.04)

Total $ (.21) $ .72 $ 1.65

Diluted earnings per share computation

Income (loss) available to common stockholders before extraordinary items $ (49.9) $ 244.8 $ 486.1

Plus interest expense on assumed conversion of 
8 1/4% Convertible Notes, net of tax .3

Income (loss) available to common stockholders
plus assumed conversions before extraordinary items (49.9) 244.8 486.4

Extraordinary items (17.2) (19.8) (12.1)

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (67.1) $ 225.0 $ 474.3

Weighted average shares (thousands) 318,207 313,115 287,290

Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions:

Employee stock plans 3,536 9,835

8 1/4% Convertible Notes 818

Preferred stock 877

Adjusted weighted average shares 318,207 316,651 298,820

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Before extraordinary items $ (.16) $ .77 $ 1.63

Extraordinary items (.05) (.06) (.04)

Total $ (.21) $ .71 $ 1.59

The shares listed below were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the option prices
were above the average market price of the company’s common stock or their inclusion would have been antidilutive.

Year ended December 31 (thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Employee stock plans 28,653 16,073 6,680
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Accounting changes
Effective January 1, 2001, the company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties.” This statement establishes accounting
and reporting standards for derivative instru-
ments and hedging activities.  SFAS No. 133
requires a company to recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities in the state-
ment of financial position and measure those
instruments at fair value. Derivatives that are
not hedges must be adjusted to fair value
through income. If the derivative is a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge,
changes in the fair value of the derivative are
either offset against the change in fair value 
of assets, liabilities, or firm commitments
through earnings or recognized in other com-
prehensive income until the hedged item is
recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion
of a derivative’s change in fair value is imme-
diately recognized in earnings. The cumulative
effect of the change in accounting principle
due to the adoption of SFAS No. 133 resulted
in the recognition of income of $3.3 million
(net of $1.8 million of tax) in other comprehen-
sive income.

Effective April 1, 2001, the company
adopted SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for 
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”  This
statement revised the accounting standards
for securitizations and other transfers of finan-
cial assets and collateral and requires certain
disclosures.  Adoption of SFAS No. 140 had
no effect on the company’s consolidated
financial position, consolidated results of 
operations, or liquidity.

3 In June 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141, “Busi-
ness Combinations,” and No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141
requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combina-
tions initiated after June 30, 2001 and pro-
hibits the use of the pooling-of-interests
method. SFAS No. 141 also includes guidance
on the initial recognition and measurement of
goodwill and other intangible assets acquired
in a business combination that is completed
after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 no longer
permits the amortization of goodwill and indef-
inite-lived intangible assets. Instead, these
assets must be reviewed annually for impair-
ment in accordance with this statement. The
company is required to adopt SFAS No. 142
effective January 1, 2002. In anticipation of
adoption, the company reclassified the amount
of goodwill as a separate line item in its bal-
ance sheet. During the first half of 2002, the
company will perform the first of the required
impairment tests of goodwill. The company
has not yet determined what effect, if any, this
initial test will have on the company’s consoli-
dated financial position or consolidated results
of operations. An impairment charge, if any,
from this initial test will be reported as 
a change in accounting principle. As a result 
of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, all amortiza-
tion of goodwill as a charge to earnings ($16.5
million in 2001, or $.04 per share) will be 
eliminated.
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The 2001 fourth-quarter charge was recorded in
the following statement of income classifications:
cost of revenue, $163.8 million; selling, general
and administrative expenses, $83.2 million;
research and development expenses, $27.6 
million; and other income (expense), net, 
$1.7 million.

Fourth-quarter charges
2001 charge In response to the weak eco-
nomic environment in 2001, the company took
actions in 2001 to further reduce its cost struc-
ture.  In the fourth quarter of 2001, the company
recorded a pretax charge of $276.3 million, or
$.64 per share, primarily for a work-force reduc-
tion of approximately 3,750 people (1,700 in the
United States and 2,050 outside the United
States). Of the total, approximately 2,000 people
left the company in 2001 with the remainder to
leave in 2002. Of the total work-force reduction,
764 people accepted an early retirement program
in the United States. For those employees who
accepted the early retirement program, cash
requirements will be provided through the com-
pany’s pension plan. Cash expenditures related to
the involuntary reductions were $23.3 million in
2001. A further breakdown of the individual com-
ponents of these costs follows:

Work-Force Reductions(1)

(Millions) Total U. S. Int’l Other (2)

Work-force
reductions (1)

Early retirement $ 58.8 $58.8

Involuntary 
reductions 145.9 18.8 $127.1

Subtotal 204.7 77.6 127.1

Other (2) 71.6 $71.6

Total charge 276.3 77.6 127.1 71.6

Utilized (127.2) (62.5) (22.6) (42.1)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 2001 $ 149.1 $15.1 $104.5 $29.5

Expected future
utilization:

2002 $ 118.7 $12.3 $ 93.1 $13.3

2003 and
thereafter 30.4 2.8 11.4 16.2

(1) Includes severance, notice pay, medical and other benefits.
(2) Includes facilities costs (principally representing provision for idle lease

costs) of $29.5 million and product and program discontinuances (princi-
pally representing a provision for asset write-downs) of $42.1 million.

4

2000 charge As a result of a strategic
business review of its operations in 2000, the
company took actions to focus its resources
on value-added business opportunities, de-
emphasize or eliminate low-return businesses
and lower its cost base.  In the fourth quarter
of 2000, the company recorded a pretax
charge of $127.6 million, or $.29 per diluted
share, primarily for a work-force reduction of
2,000 people (1,400 in the United States and
600 outside the United States). Of the total,
approximately 500 people left the company in
2001 and 1,300 in 2000. Of the total work-
force reduction, 742 people accepted an early
retirement program in the United States. For
those employees who accepted the early
retirement program, cash requirements were
provided through the company’s pension plan.
Cash expenditures related to the involuntary
reductions were $39.3 million in 2001 and
$8.7 million in 2000. A further breakdown 
of the individual components of these 
costs follows:
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Work-Force Reductions(1)

(Millions) Total U. S. Int’l Other (2)

Work-force
reductions (1)

Early retirement $ 57.8 $57.8

Involuntary 
reductions 60.9 13.3 $47.6

Subtotal 118.7 71.1 47.6

Other (2) 8.9 $8.9

Total charge 127.6 71.1 47.6 8.9

Utilized (71.9) (58.7) (7.8) (5.4)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 2000 55.7 12.4 39.8 3.5

Utilized (40.0) (8.8) (30.5) (.7)

Other(3) (7.1) (2.3) (4.0) (.8)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 2001 $ 8.6 $ 1.3 $ 5.3 $ 2.0

(1) Includes severance, notice pay, medical and other benefits.
(2) Includes facilities costs, and product and program discontinuances.
(3) Includes changes in estimates, reversals of excess reserves, 

translation adjustments and additional provisions.

In 2001, there was a reduction in accrued
work-force provisions principally for the
reversal of unneeded reserves due to approxi-
mately 200 voluntary terminations.

The 2000 fourth-quarter charge was
recorded in the following statement of income
classifications: cost of revenue, $56.1 million;
selling, general and administrative expenses,
$51.9 million; research and development
expenses, $18.2 million; and other income
(expense), net, $1.4 million.

The December 31, 2001 balance is all
expected to be utilized in 2002.
Prior-year charges   As a result of prior-
year actions related to a strategic realignment
of the company’s business in 1997 and 1995,
cash expenditures in 2001, 2000 and 1999
were $8.9, $17.6 and $44.6 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2001, a $12.3
million balance remains principally repre-
senting contractual obligations (reduced by
sublease income) existing under long-term
leases of vacated facilities. All but $4.8 million
of this balance is expected to be utilized in
2002.

Accounts receivable 
In December 2000, the company entered into
an agreement, renewable annually, at the pur-
chasers’ option, for up to three years, to sell
through Unisys Funding Corporation I, a wholly
owned subsidiary, interests in eligible U.S.
trade accounts receivable for up to $275 mil-
lion. Upon renewal of the facility in December
2001, the amount was reduced to $225 million.
Unisys Funding Corporation I has been struc-
tured to isolate its assets from creditors of
Unisys. In 2000, the company received pro-
ceeds of $232 million from the initial sale and
in 2001, the company received an aggregate of
$2.3 billion from ongoing sales of accounts
receivable interests under the program. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the company
retained subordinated interests of $135 million
and $223 million, respectively, in the associated
receivables. These receivables have been
included in accounts and notes receivable, net
in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet. As collections reduce previously sold
interests, interests in new eligible receivables
can be sold, subject to meeting certain condi-
tions. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, receiv-
ables of $176 million and $232 million,
respectively, were sold and therefore removed
from the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet.

The selling price of the receivables interests
reflects a discount based on the A-1 rated com-
mercial paper borrowing rates of the pur-
chasers (2.0% at December 31, 2001 and
6.7% at December 31, 2000). The company
remains responsible for servicing the under-
lying accounts receivable, for which it will
receive a fee of 0.5% of the outstanding bal-
ance, which it believes represents adequate

5



6 Income taxes

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Income (loss) before income taxes

United States $ 95.9 $ 389.0 $ 485.4

Foreign (142.4) (10.0) 284.9

Total income (loss) before 
income taxes $ (46.5) $ 379.0 $ 770.3

Provision for income taxes 

Current

United States $ 7.7 $ 10.1 $ 55.3

Foreign 24.0 63.6 79.1

State and local 3.5 4.9 10.5

Total 35.2 78.6 144.9

Deferred

United States (16.2) 72.8 75.7

Foreign (15.6) (17.2) 24.4

State and local 2.5

Total (31.8) 55.6 102.6

Total provision for income taxes $ 3.4 $ 134.2 $ 247.5

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

United States statutory income
tax (benefit) $ (16.3) $132.7 $ 269.6

Difference in estimated income
taxes on foreign earnings, losses
and remittances 44.6 36.2 3.8

State taxes 2.3 3.2 9.3

Tax refund claims, audit issues 
and other matters (26.1) (39.6) (18.0)

U.S. tax law change (22.0)

Other (1.1) 1.7 4.8

Provision for income taxes $ 3.4 $134.2 $ 247.5

Following is a reconciliation of the provision
for income taxes at the United States statu-
tory tax rate to the provision for income taxes
as reported:
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compensation. The company estimates the fair
value of its retained interests by considering
two key assumptions: the payment rate, which
is derived from the average life of the accounts
receivable which is less than 60 days, and the
rate of expected credit losses. Based on the
company’s favorable collection experience and
very short-term nature of the receivables, both
assumptions are considered to be highly pre-
dictable. Therefore, the company’s estimated
fair value of its retained interests in the pool of
eligible receivables is approximately equal to
book value, less the associated allowance for
doubtful accounts. The discount on the sales of
these accounts receivable during the year
ended December 31, 2001 was $12.2 million.
The amount of discount for the year ended
December 31, 2000 was not material. These
discounts are recorded in other income
(expense), net in the accompanying consoli-
dated statement of income. 

Revenue recognized in excess of billings on
services contracts, or unbilled accounts receiv-
able, was $146.7 and $171.3 million at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Such amounts are included in accounts and
notes receivables, net.
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The tax effects of temporary differences
and carryforwards that give rise to significant
portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, were as 
follows:

December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

Deferred tax assets

Capitalized research and 
development $ 561.1 $ 592.7

Tax loss carryforwards 325.2 280.0

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 34.1 159.1

Other tax credit carryforwards 239.4 232.2

Capitalized intellectual 
property rights 303.4 101.7

Postretirement benefits 71.8 80.1

Employee benefits 77.5 83.8

Depreciation 48.4 61.0

Restructuring 92.8 67.1

Other 278.0 242.6

2,031.7 1,900.3

Valuation allowance (342.2) (309.2)

Total deferred tax assets $1,689.5 $1,591.1

Deferred tax liabilities

Pensions $ 501.2 $ 451.9

Sales-type leases 102.9 85.2

Other 51.2 64.2

Total deferred tax liabilities $ 655.3 $ 601.3

Net deferred tax assets $1,034.2 $ 989.8

SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax
assets be reduced by a valuation allowance 
if it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. The valuation allowance at December
31, 2001, applies to tax loss carryforwards and
temporary differences relating to state and
local and certain foreign taxing jurisdictions
that, in management’s opinion, are more likely
than not to expire unused.

Cumulative undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries, for which no U.S. 
income or foreign withholding taxes have 
been recorded, approximated $750 million 
at December 31, 2001. Such earnings are
expected to be reinvested indefinitely.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability with respect to such
earnings is not practicable. The additional
taxes payable on the earnings of foreign 

subsidiaries, if remitted, would be substantially
offset by U.S. tax credits for foreign taxes
already paid. While there are no specific plans
to distribute the undistributed earnings in the
immediate future, where economically
appropriate to do so, such earnings may be
remitted.

Cash paid during 2001, 2000 and 1999 
for income taxes was $97.0, $110.0 and 
$96.6 million, respectively.

In 1999, the company recognized a one-
time tax benefit of $22.0 million, or $.07 per
diluted common share, related to a U.S. Trea-
sury income tax regulation pertaining to the
use of net operating loss carryforwards of
acquired companies.

At December 31, 2001, the company 
has U.S. federal and state and local tax 
loss carryforwards and foreign tax loss
carryforwards for certain foreign subsidiaries,
the tax effect of which is approximately 
$325.2 million. These carryforwards will 
expire as follows (in millions): 2002, $7.9;
2003, $11.8; 2004, $32.4; 2005, $16.0; 2006, 
$29.7; and $227.4 thereafter. The company 
also has available tax credit carryforwards 
of approximately $273.5 million, which will
expire as follows (in millions): 2002, $ - ; 2003,
$10.7; 2004, $7.5; 2005, $40.1; 2006, $ - ; and
$215.2 thereafter.

The company’s net deferred tax assets
include substantial amounts of capitalized
research and development, tax credit
carryforwards and capitalized intellectual 
property rights. Failure to achieve forecasted
taxable income might affect the ultimate 
realization of the net deferred tax assets. 
Factors that may affect the company’s ability
to achieve sufficient forecasted taxable
income include, but are not limited to, the 
following: increased competition, a decline 
in sales or margins, loss of market share,
delays in product availability or technological
obsolescence.



December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

Land $ 5.2 $ 8.3

Buildings 143.7 148.0

Machinery and office equipment 897.4 903.0

Internal use software 139.9 121.2

Rental and outsourcing 
equipment 258.8 220.1

Total properties $1,445.0 $1,400.6

Investments at equity and
minority interests
Substantially all of the company’s investments
at equity consist of Nihon Unisys, Ltd., a pub-
licly traded Japanese company (“NUL”). NUL
is the exclusive supplier of the company’s
hardware and software products in Japan. The
company considers its investment in NUL to
be of a long-term strategic nature. For the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, both direct and indirect sales to NUL
were approximately $340 million, $530 million
and $490 million, respectively. At December
31, 2001, the company owned approximately
28% of NUL’s common stock that has a
market value of approximately $188 million.
The company has approximately $183 million
of retained earnings that represents
undistributed earnings of NUL.

During 2000, a new company was formed
named Intelligent Processing Solutions Lim-
ited (“iPSL”), a UK-based company, which
provides high-volume payment processing.
iPSL is 51% owned by the company and is
fully consolidated in the company’s financial
statements.  The minority owners’ interests
are reported in other long-term liabilities
($48.6 million at December 31, 2001) and in
other income (expense), net in the company’s
financial statements.

Debt
Long-term debt comprises the following:
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December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

81⁄8% senior notes due 2006 $400.0 $ –
77⁄8% senior notes due 2008 200.0 200.0
71⁄4% senior notes due 2005 150.0 –
113⁄4% senior notes – 334.2
Other, net of unamortized

discounts (2.8) 18.9

Total 747.2 553.1
Less – current maturities 2.2 16.8

Total long-term debt $745.0 $ 536.3

Total long-term debt maturities in 2002, 2003,
2004, 2005 and 2006 are $2.2, $1.0, $.6, $150.2
and $400.2 million, respectively.

Cash paid during 2001, 2000 and 1999 for
interest was $92.9, $90.5 and $141.5 million,
respectively.

During 2001, the company issued $400 million
of 8 1/8% senior notes due 2006 and $150 million
of 71⁄4% senior notes due 2005.  In June 2001, the
company completed a cash tender offer for $319.2
million principal amount of its 113⁄4% senior notes
due 2004 and in October 2001, the company
redeemed, at a premium, the remaining $15.0 mil-
lion outstanding principal amount of such notes.
As a result of these actions, the company recorded
an extraordinary after-tax charge of $17.2 million,
net of $9.3 million tax benefit, or $.05 per share,
for the premium paid, unamortized debt-related
expenses and transaction costs.

In 2000, the company redeemed all of its $399.5
million outstanding 12% senior notes due 2003 at
the stated redemption price of 106% of principal.
As a result, the company recorded an extraordinary
charge of $19.8 million, net of $10.7 million of
income tax benefits, or $.06 per diluted share, for
the call premium and unamortized debt expense. 

Properties
Properties comprise the following:

34
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During 1999, the company repurchased
$115.8 million principal amount of its 113⁄4%
senior notes due 2004 and $25.5 million
principal amount of its 12% senior notes due
2003 at a cost of $157.4 million. As a result,
the company recorded an extraordinary charge
of $12.1 million, net of $6.5 million of income
tax benefits, or $.04 per diluted common
share.

In March 2001, the company entered into a
new three-year $450 million unsecured credit
agreement, which replaced the $400 million
three-year facility that was to expire in June
2001. As of December 31, 2001, there were
no borrowings under the facility and the entire
$450 million was available for borrowings. The
company pays commitment fees on the total
amount of the facility. Borrowings under the
agreement bear interest based on the then
current LIBOR or prime rates and the com-
pany’s credit rating. The credit agreement con-
tains financial and other covenants, including
maintenance of certain financial ratios and a
minimum level of net worth and limitations on
certain types of transactions.  At December
31, 2001, the company has met all of the
covenants and conditions under this agree-
ment. In addition, the company has access to
certain uncommitted lines of credit from U.S.
banks, and international subsidiaries maintain
short-term credit arrangements with banks in
accordance with local customary practice.

11

December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

Payrolls and commissions $ 255.7 $ 314.7

Customers’ deposits and 
prepayments 561.6 504.7

Taxes other than income taxes 106.0 120.2

Restructuring* 134.8 73.4

Other 254.4 265.8

Total other accrued liabilities $1,312.5 $1,278.8

*At December 31, 2001 and 2000, an additional $35.2 million
and $9.4 million, respectively, was reported in other long-term
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Rental expense and 
commitments
Rental expense, less income from subleases,
for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $161.6, $146.0
and $134.7 million, respectively.

Minimum net rental commitments under
noncancelable operating leases outstanding at
December 31, 2001, substantially all of which
relate to real properties, were as follows: 
2002, $128.3; 2003, $109.2; 2004, $83.0;
2005, $58.2; 2006, $46.1; and $254.8 million
thereafter. Such rental commitments have
been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of
$85.6 million due in the future under
noncancelable subleases.

Rental expense for 2001 and 2000 includes
approximately $2.0 and $2.2 million, respec-
tively, under a facility lease that expires in
March 2005. The owner of the property is a
special purpose entity in which unrelated third
parties made and have maintained an equity
capital investment. The company has no debt
or equity interest in this entity. The company
does not consolidate this entity. If accounting
rules were to change and the company were
required to consolidate this entity, assets and
debt would increase by approximately $33 mil-
lion; however, the change in the company’s
results of operations would be minimal. The
company has the option to purchase the facility
at any time during the lease term for approxi-
mately $33 million. At the end of the lease
term, the company has agreed to either pur-
chase the facility or remarket it to a third party
on behalf of the owner. If the sales price is
less than $33 million, the company is obligated
to make up the lesser of the shortfall or $28
million. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of
the property exceeded $33 million. The lease
contains a number of financial covenants and
other provisions. At December 31, 2001, the
company was in compliance with all of these
covenants and provisions.

At December 31, 2001, the company had
outstanding standby letters of credit and surety
bonds of approximately $230 million related to
performance and payment guarantees. Based
on experience with these arrangements, the
company believes that any obligations that may
arise will not be material.

10 Other accrued liabilities
Other accrued liabilities (current) comprise 
the following:



for third-party royalty was a gain of approxi-
mately $4.2 million. The ineffective amount
related to cash flow hedge derivatives for
intercompany transactions was immaterial.
Both the amounts reclassified out of other
comprehensive income and into earnings and
the ineffectiveness recognized in earnings
related to cash flow hedge derivatives for
forecasted intercompany transactions are rec-
ognized in cost of revenue, and in revenue for
forecasted third-party royalties. Substantially
all of the accumulated income and loss in
other comprehensive income related to cash
flow hedges at December 31, 2001 is
expected to be reclassified into earnings
within the next twelve months.

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued
because it is probable that the original for-
casted transactions will not occur by the end
of the original specified time period, the com-
pany is required to reclassify any gains or
losses out of other comprehensive income
and into earnings. The amount of such reclas-
sifications during the year ended December
31, 2001 was immaterial.

In addition to the cash flow hedge deriva-
tives mentioned above, the company enters
into foreign exchange forward contracts that
have not been designated as hedging instru-
ments. Such contracts generally have maturi-
ties of one month and are used by the
company to manage its exposure to changes
in foreign currency exchange rates principally
on intercompany accounts. The fair value of
such instruments is recognized as either
assets or liabilities in the company’s balance
sheet and changes in the fair value are recog-
nized immediately in earnings in other income
(expense), net in the company’s statement of
income.
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Financial instruments
Due to its foreign operations, the company is
exposed to the effects of foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations on the U.S. dollar.
The company uses derivative financial instru-
ments to manage its exposure to market risks
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. The derivative instruments used are for-
eign exchange forward contracts and foreign
exchange options.

Certain of the company’s qualifying deriva-
tive financial instruments have been desig-
nated as cash flow hedging instruments.
Such instruments are used to manage the
company’s currency exchange rate risks for
forecasted transactions involving intercom-
pany sales and third-party royalty receipts. For
the forecasted intercompany transactions, the
company generally enters into derivative finan-
cial instruments for a six-month period by ini-
tially purchasing a three-month foreign
exchange option, which, at expiration, is
replaced with a three-month foreign exchange
forward contract. For forecasted third-party
royalty receipts, which are principally denomi-
nated in Japanese yen, the company generally
purchases twelve-month foreign exchange for-
ward contracts.

Effective January 1, 2001, the company
recognized the fair value of its cash flow
hedge derivatives as either assets or liabilities
in its balance sheet. Changes in the fair value
related to the effective portion of such deriva-
tives are recognized in other comprehensive
income until the hedged item is recognized in
earnings, at which point the accumulated gain
or loss is reclassified out of other comprehen-
sive income and into earnings. The ineffective
portion of such derivative’s change in fair
value is immediately recognized in earnings.
The amount of ineffectiveness recognized in
earnings during the year ended December 31,
2001 related to cash flow hedge derivatives

12
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In 1999, the company entered into interest
rate swaps and currency swaps for euros and
Japanese yen. The currency swaps were 
designated as hedges of the foreign currency
exposure on the company’s net investments
in foreign subsidiaries and equity investments.
The currency effects of these hedges were
reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) thereby offsetting a portion of
the foreign currency translation of net assets.
The difference between receipts of a U.S.
fixed rate of interest and payments of a for-
eign currency denominated floating rate was
reported in interest expense. In 2000, the
company terminated these swaps, and as a
result received net cash of $18.5 million and
recognized a pretax loss of $2.7 million. 
Under the swaps, the company recognized 
an interest expense benefit of approximately 
$16 million and $7 million in 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

Financial instruments also include
temporary cash investments and customer
accounts receivable. Temporary investments
are placed with creditworthy financial institu-
tions, primarily in oversecuritized treasury
repurchase agreements, Eurotime deposits, 
or commercial paper of major corporations. 
At December 31, 2001, the company’s cash
equivalents principally have maturities of 
less than one month. Due to the short
maturities of these instruments, they are
carried on the balance sheet at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates 
market value. Realized gains or losses 
during 2001 and 2000, as well as unrealized
gains or losses at December 31, 2001, 
were immaterial. Receivables are due 
from a large number of customers that are 
dispersed worldwide across many industries.
At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
company had no significant concentrations 
of credit risk. The carrying amount of cash
and cash equivalents, notes payable and long-
term debt approximates fair value. 

Litigation
There are various lawsuits, claims and
proceedings that have been brought or
asserted against the company. Although the
ultimate results of these lawsuits, claims and
proceedings are not currently determinable,
management does not expect that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on
the company’s consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

13
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Segment information
The company has two business segments:
Services and Technology. The products and
services of each segment are marketed
throughout the world to commercial
businesses and governments. The major
service and product lines by segment are 
as follows: Services – systems integration and
consulting, outsourcing, network services,
security and multivendor maintenance; Tech-
nology – enterprise-class servers and special-
ized technologies.

The accounting policies of each business
segment are the same as those described 
in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Intersegment sales and transfers are
priced as if the sales or transfers were to third
parties. The company evaluates business seg-
ment performance on operating income exclu-
sive of restructuring charges and unusual 
and nonrecurring items. All corporate and 
centrally incurred costs are allocated to 
the business segments based principally 
on assets, revenue, employees, square
footage or usage.

Corporate assets are principally cash 
and cash equivalents, prepaid pension 
assets and deferred income taxes. The
expense or income related to corporate 
assets is allocated to the business segments.
In addition, corporate assets include an offset
for interests in accounts receivable that have
been recorded as sales in accordance with
SFAS No. 140 because such receivables are
included in the assets of the business
segments.

No single customer accounts for more 
than 10% of revenue. Revenue from various
agencies of the U.S. Government, which is
reported in both business segments,
approximated $623, $689 and $865 million 
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(Millions of dollars) Total Corporate Services Technology

2001

Customer revenue $6,018.1 $ 4,444.6 $ 1,573.5
Intersegment $ (363.4) 73.8 289.6

Total revenue $6,018.1 $ (363.4) $ 4,518.4 $ 1,863.1

Operating income 
(loss) $ (4.5) $ (315.7) $ 94.7 $ 216.5

Depreciation and
amortization 302.2 139.3 162.9

Total assets 5,769.1 2,617.6 2,009.3 1,142.2
Investments at 

equity 212.3 1.8 210.5
Capital expenditures 

for properties 199.4 28.9 113.8 56.7

2000

Customer revenue $6,885.0 $ 4,741.6 $ 2,143.4
Intersegment $ (437.2) 46.6 390.6

Total revenue $6,885.0 $ (437.2) $ 4,788.2 $ 2,534.0

Operating income 
(loss) $ 426.8 $ (103.3) $ 81.4 $ 448.7

Depreciation and
amortization 272.9 116.7 156.2

Total assets 5,713.3 2,434.4 1,989.0 1,289.9
Investments at 

equity 225.8 1.7 224.1
Capital expenditures 

for properties 198.3 21.4 111.9 65.0

1999

Customer revenue $7,544.6 $ 5,287.0 $ 2,257.6
Intersegment $ (577.5) 65.6 511.9

Total revenue $7,544.6 $ (577.5) $ 5,352.6 $ 2,769.5

Operating income 
(loss) $ 960.7 $ (23.6) $ 421.0 $ 563.3

Depreciation and
amortization 267.1 115.1 152.0

Total assets 5,885.0 2,750.2 1,991.8 1,143.0
Investments at 

equity 225.5 1.8 223.7
Capital expenditures 

for properties 219.6 59.9 97.8 61.9

14 A summary of the company’s operations 
by business segment for 2001, 2000 and
1999 is presented below:



December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Total segment assets $3,151.5 $3,278.9 $3,134.8

Cash and cash equivalents 325.9 378.0 464.0

Prepaid pension assets 1,221.0 1,063.0 975.9

Deferred income taxes 1,090.4 1,044.2 1,128.3

Elimination for sale of 
receivables (191.8) (279.1) (30.7)

Other corporate assets 172.1 228.3 212.7

Total assets $5,769.1 $5,713.3 $5,885.0
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Presented below is a reconciliation of total
business segment operating income to
consolidated income (loss) before income taxes:

(Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Revenue

United States $2,595.3 $2,875.5 $3,357.9

United Kingdom 823.9 762.9 806.5

Other foreign 2,598.9 3,246.6 3,380.2

Total $6,018.1 $6,885.0 $7,544.6

Properties, net

United States $ 345.9 $ 334.0 $ 308.3

United Kingdom 60.1 52.6 64.2

Other foreign 128.2 123.3 130.6

Total $ 534.2 $ 509.9 $ 503.1

Year ended December 31
(Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Total segment operating
income $ 311.2 $ 530.1 $ 984.3

Interest expense (70.0) (79.8) (127.8)

Other income (expense), net 28.0 32.0 (62.6)

Corporate and eliminations (39.4) 24.3 (23.6)

Fourth-quarter charges (276.3) (127.6)

Total income (loss) before
income taxes $ (46.5) $ 379.0 $ 770.3

Presented below is a reconciliation of total
business segment assets to consolidated
assets:

Geographic information about the
company’s revenue, which is principally
based on location of the selling organization,
and properties, is presented below:

Employee plans
Stock plans Under plans approved by the
stockholders, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units
may be granted to officers and other key
employees.

Options have been granted to purchase the
company’s common stock at 100% of the fair
market value at the date of grant. Options gener-
ally have a maximum duration of ten years and
become exercisable in annual installments over 
a four-year period following date of grant.

Restricted stock and restricted stock units
have been granted and are subject to forfeiture
until the expiration of a specified period of ser-
vice commencing on the date of grant. Compen-
sation expense resulting from the awards is
charged to income ratably from the date of grant
until the date the restrictions lapse and is based
on fair market value at the date of grant. During
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, $.6, $1.0 and $2.5 million was charged to
income, respectively.

The company has a worldwide Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which enables
substantially all regular employees to purchase
shares of the company’s common stock through
payroll deductions of up to 10% of eligible pay.
The price the employee pays is 85% of the
market price at the beginning or end of a cal-
endar quarter, whichever is lower. During the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, employees purchased newly issued
shares from the company for $28.8, $37.3 
and $35.1 million, respectively.

U.S. employees are eligible to participate in
an employee savings plan. Under this plan,
employees may contribute a percentage of their
pay for investment in various investment alterna-
tives. Effective July 1, 1998, the company rein-
stituted a company match for up to 1% of pay.
Effective January 1, 2000, the company match
was increased to 2% of pay. Company matching
contributions are made in the form of newly
issued shares of company common stock. The
charge to income related to the company match
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999 was $18.0, $19.1 and $8.2 million,
respectively.

15
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The company applies APB Opinion 25 
for its stock plans and the disclosure-only
option under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation.” Accordingly,
no compensation expense is recognized for 
stock options granted and for common stock
purchases under the ESPP.

Pro forma information regarding net income
and earnings per share is required by SFAS
No. 123, and has been determined as if the
company had accounted for its stock plans
under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123.
The fair value of stock options is estimated at
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions for 2001, 2000 and

1999, respectively: risk-free interest rates of
5.08%, 6.84% and 5.14%, volatility factors of
the expected market price of the company’s
common stock of 55%, a weighted average
expected life of the options of five years and
no dividends.

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures,
the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized to expense over the options’ 
vesting period. The company’s pro forma 
net income (loss) for the years ended
December 31,  2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively, follows: 2001, $(118.9) million, or 
$(.37) per share; 2000, $182.5 million, or $.58
per diluted share; and 1999, $472.2 million, or
$1.46 per diluted share.

A summary of the status of stock option activity follows:       

Year ended December 31 
(Shares in thousands) 2001 2000 1999

Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg.
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at 
beginning of year 22,085 $24.44 19,158 $19.74 218,252 $13.28

Granted 9,122 17.75 7,667 33.36 6,981 30.54
Exercised (697) 6.91 (1,455) 9.58 (4,649) 11.28
Forfeited and expired (1,857) 27.07 (3,285) 24.41 (1,426) 17.05

Outstanding at end of year 28,653 22.56 22,085 24.44 19,158 19.74

Exercisable at end of year 11,709 19.90 7,946 15.72 6,138 11.39

Shares available for granting
options at end of year 2,477 4,008 2,601

Weighted average fair value 
of options granted during 
the year $19.80 $18.76 $15.95

December 31, 2001
(Shares in thousands) Outstanding Exercisable

Exercise Average Average Average
Price Range Shares Life * Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$4–11 3,798 5.08 $ 7.30 3,299 $ 7.14
$11–30 13,439 7.83 18.45 4,250 18.08
$30–52 11,416 7.79 32.49 4,160 31.88

Total 28,653 7.45 22.56 11,709 19.90

* Average contractual remaining life in years.
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U.S. Plans International Plans  

December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $3,559.0 $3,491.1 $757.1 $844.2

Service cost 35.2 37.4 22.3 18.7

Interest cost 273.7 263.5 55.1 49.9

Plan participants’ contributions 8.2 9.4

Plan amendments 59.6 59.0 4.0 1.1

Actuarial (gain) loss 217.8 (29.2) 45.9 (11.2)

Benefits paid (276.3) (262.8) (38.4) (34.7)

Effect of settlements/curtailments 1.8 1.4

Foreign currency translation adjustments 10.1 (121.7)

Other* 80.9

Benefit obligation at end of year $3,869.0 $3,559.0 $947.0 $757.1

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $4,951.3 $5,045.5 $847.9 $959.3

Actual return on plan assets (381.4) 163.5 (46.2) 40.4

Employer contribution 6.5 5.1 26.0 10.1

Plan participants’ contributions 8.2 9.4

Benefits paid (276.3) (262.8) (38.4) (34.7)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 15.0 (136.6)

Other* 102.4

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $4,300.1 $4,951.3 $914.9 $847.9

Funded status $ 431.1 $1,392.3 $ (32.1) $ 90.8

Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss 660.4 (413.6) 152.0 (13.7)

Unrecognized prior service (benefit) cost (6.3) (12.8) 5.8 6.9

Unrecognized net obligation at date of adoption .3

Prepaid pension cost $1,085.2 $ 965.9 $125.7 $ 84.3

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance 
sheet consist of:

Prepaid pension cost $1,085.2 $ 965.9 $135.8 $ 97.1

Other long-term liabilities (10.1) (12.8)

$1,085.2 $ 965.9 $125.7 $ 84.3

* Represents amounts of pension assets and liabilities assumed by the company at the inception of certain outsourcing contracts
related to the customers’ employees hired by the company.

Retirement benefits
Retirement plans funded status and amounts
recognized in the company’s consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2001 and
2000, follows:

The projected benefit obligations, accumulated
benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for
plans with accumulated benefit obligations in
excess of plan assets was as follows (in millions
of dollars): $181.0, $171.3 and $93.3 million at
December 31, 2001 and $168.7, $161.4 and 
$91.2 million at December 31, 2000.
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Other postretirement benefits
A reconciliation of the benefit obligation, fair value 
of the plan assets and the funded status of the
postretirement medical plan at December 31, 2001
and 2000, follows:

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Interest cost $15.2 $14.9 $14.9

Expected return on plan assets (.4)

Amortization of prior 
service benefit (2.0) (2.0) (2.2)

Recognized net actuarial loss 1.3 .4 .6
Settlement/curtailment gain (6.5)

Net periodic benefit cost $14.5 $13.3 $ 6.4

Weighted-average assumptions
as of December 31 were as
follows:

Discount rate 7.40% 7.70% 7.50%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in
measuring the expected cost of benefits covered by the
plan is 9.1% for 2001, gradually declining to 5.5% in 
2006 and thereafter. A one-percentage-point increase
(decrease) in the assumed health care cost trend rate
would increase (decrease) the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation at December 31, 2001, by 
$6.6 and $(6.4) million, respectively, and increase
(decrease) the interest cost component of net periodic
postretirement benefit cost for 2001 by $.5 and $(.5)
million, respectively.

December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 219.1 $ 217.4

Interest cost 15.2 14.9

Plan participants’ contributions 27.8 24.1

Actuarial loss 10.9 7.2

Benefits paid (52.9) (44.3)

Effect of settlement/curtailment (.2)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 220.1 $ 219.1

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning 
of year $ 13.3 $ 13.4

Actual return on plan assets 1.0 1.4

Employer contributions 24.2 18.7

Plan participants’ contributions 27.8 24.1

Benefits paid (52.9) (44.3)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 13.4 $ 13.3

Funded status $ (206.7) $(205.8)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 26.2 17.5

Unrecognized prior service benefit (9.9) (11.8)

Accrued benefit cost $ (190.4) $(200.1)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2001, 
2000 and 1999 follows:

Net periodic pension cost for 2001, 2000 and 1999 includes the following components:

U.S. Plans International Plans

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

Service cost $ 35.2 $ 37.4 $ 39.3 $ 22.3 $ 18.7 $ 18.0

Interest cost 273.7 263.5 251.3 55.1 49.9 51.5

Expected return on plan assets (476.2) (440.3) (395.4) (79.4) (67.3) (67.4)

Amortization of prior service (benefit) cost (5.5) (5.9) (6.3) .9 .9 1.0

Amortization of asset or liability at adoption .8 .7 .3 .3 .1

Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) 1.2 1.1 1.4 (1.0) .5 2.8

Settlement/curtailment (gain) loss 3.4 1.4 1.1

Net periodic pension (income) cost $ (171.6) $ (143.4) $(109.0) $ 1.6 $ 4.4 $ 7.1

Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31 
were as follows:

Discount rate 7.50% 8.00% 7.75% 6.25% 6.57% 6.35%

Rate of compensation increase 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 3.80% 3.77% 3.81%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 8.54% 8.51% 8.44%
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Preferred Common Treasury
(Thousands) Stock Stock Stock

Balance at December 31, 1998 28,941 259,447 (1,292)

Conversions to common stock (24,952) 46,090 110

Redemptions (3,941)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 6,916 (578)

Other (48)

Balance at December 31, 1999 – 312,453 (1,870)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 4,882 (26)

Balance at December 31, 2000 – 3317,335 (1,896)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 5,152 (17)

Balance at December 31, 2001 – 322,487 (1,913)

Stockholders’ equity
The company has 720.0 million authorized shares
of common stock, par value $.01 per share, and
40.0 million shares of authorized preferred stock,
par value $1 per share, issuable in series. 

During the year ended December 31, 1999,
the company made several calls of its Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series
A Preferred Stock”) for redemption. As a result,
of the 28.4 million shares of Series A Preferred
Stock outstanding at December 31, 1998, 24.5
million were converted into 40.8 million shares of
the company’s common stock and 3.9 million
shares of Series A Preferred Stock were
redeemed for $197.0 million in cash.

In 1999, the remaining balance of $27 million
of 81/4% convertible subordinated notes due
2006 were converted into 3.9 million shares of
the company’s common stock.

Each outstanding share of common stock has
attached to it one preferred share purchase right.
The rights become exercisable only if a person or
group acquires 20% or more of the company’s
common stock, or announces a tender or
exchange offer for 30% or more of the common
stock. Until the rights become exercisable, they
have no dilutive effect on net income per
common share.

At December 31, 2001, 42.1 million shares of
unissued common stock of the company were
reserved for stock options and for stock purchase
and savings plans.

Changes in issued shares during the three
years ended December 31, 2001, were as
follows:

16

Year ended 

December 31 (Millions) 2001 2000 1999

Net income (loss) $ (67.1) $ 225.0 $510.7

Other comprehensive 
income (loss) 

Cumulative effect of change  
in accounting principle 
(SFAS No. 133), net of tax 
of $1.8 3.3

Cash flow hedges
Income (loss), net of tax of $5.1 9.7
Reclassification adjustments, 

net of tax of $(4.6) (8.6)

Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of tax of $-,
$19.0 and $(2.8) (67.5) (73.3) (38.8)

Total other comprehensive 
income (loss) (63.1) (73.3) (38.8)

Comprehensive income (loss) $(130.2) $ 151.7 $471.9

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as of
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows (in millions
of dollars): 

Translation Cash Flow        
Total Adjustments Hedges

Balance at December 31, 1998 $ (531.6) $ (531.6) $ –

Current-period change (38.8) (38.8)

Balance at December 31, 1999 (570.4) (570.4) –

Current-period change (73.3) (73.3)

Balance at December 31, 2000 (643.7) (643.7) –

Current-period change (63.1) (67.5) 4.4

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ (706.8) $ (711.2) $ 4.4

Comprehensive income (loss) for the three
years ended December 31, 2001, includes
the following components:
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Report of Management
The management of the company is responsible for the integrity of its financial statements. These statements have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include amounts based on
the best estimates and judgments of management. Financial information included elsewhere in this report is consistent
with that in the financial statements.

The company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance at a
reasonable cost that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use, and that transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization and recorded and summarized properly. This system is augmented by
written policies and procedures, an internal audit program, and the selection and training of qualified personnel.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, have audited the company’s financial statements. Their accompanying 
report is based on audits conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States,
which require a review of the system of internal accounting controls and tests of accounting procedures and records 
to the extent necessary for the purpose of their audits.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of outside directors, oversees
management’s responsibilities in the preparation of the financial statements and selects the independent auditors, subject
to stockholder ratification. The Audit Committee meets regularly with the independent auditors, representatives of
management, and the internal auditors to review the activities of each and to assure that each is properly discharging its
responsibilities. To ensure complete independence, the internal auditors and representatives of Ernst & Young LLP have
full access to meet with the Audit Committee, with or without management representatives present, to discuss the results 
of their examinations and their opinions on the adequacy of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting.

Lawrence A. Weinbach Janet Brutschea Haugen
Chairman, President, Senior Vice President
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of Unisys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unisys Corporation as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of Unisys Corporation’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Unisys Corporation at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations 
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
January 17, 2002
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Unisys Corporation

Quarterly financial information

First Second Third Fourth

(Millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2001

Revenue $1,623.8 $1,461.4 $1,376.0 $1,556.9 $ 6,018.1
Gross profit 427.6 397.4 379.9 278.4 1,483.3
Income (loss) before income taxes 103.4 43.9 31.2 (225.0) (46.5)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item 69.3 29.3 20.9 (169.4) (49.9)
Net income (loss) 69.3 12.1 20.9 (169.4) (67.1)
Earnings (loss) per share – basic

Before extraordinary item .22 .09 .07 (.53) (.16)
Extraordinary item (.05) (.05)

Total .22 .04 .07 (.53) (.21)

Earnings (loss) per share – diluted
Before extraordinary item .22 .09 .07 (.53) (.16)
Extraordinary item (.05) (.05)

Total .22 .04 .07 (.53) (.21)

Market price per share – high 19.70 15.00 14.47 13.45 19.70
– low 12.69 11.15 7.70 7.95 7.703/

.

2000

Revenue $1,668.7 $1,597.1 $1,690.9 $1,928.3 $6,885.0
Gross profit 539.3 480.8 474.7 594.3 2,089.1
Income before income taxes 161.4 85.3 65.0 67.3 379.0
Income before extraordinary item 106.5 56.3 42.9 39.1 244.8
Net income 106.5 36.5 42.9 39.1 225.0
Earnings per share – basic

Before extraordinary item .34 .18 .14 .12 .78
Extraordinary item (.06) (.06)

Total .34 .12 .14 .12 .72

Earnings per share – diluted
Before extraordinary item .34 .18 .14 .12 .77
Extraordinary item (.06) (.06)

Total .34 .12 .14 .12 .71

Market price per share – high 36.06 28.19 15.31 16.38 36.06
– low 24.25 14.25 9.13 9.25 9.133/

In the fourth quarter of 2001 and 2000, the company recognized pretax restructuring and related charges of $276.3 and $127.6 million, or $.64 
and $.29 per share, respectively. Excluding these items, earnings per share before extraordinary items for 2001 and 2000 was $.48 and $1.06,
respectively. See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The individual quarterly per-share amounts may not total to the per-share amount for the full year because of accounting rules governing the 
computation of earnings per share.

Market prices per share are as quoted on the New York Stock Exchange composite listing.
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Five-year summary of selected financial data

(Millions, except per share data) 2001(1) 2000(1) 1999 1998 1997(1)

Results of operations

Revenue $ 6,018.1 $ 6,885.0 $ 7,544.6 $ 7,243.9 $ 6,662.9

Operating income (loss) (4.5) 426.8 960.7 799.0 (408.4)

Income (loss) before income taxes (46.5) 379.0 770.3 594.2 (748.1)

Income (loss) before extraordinary items (49.9) 244.8 522.8 376.4 (852.9)

Net income (loss) (67.1) 225.0 510.7 376.4 (852.9)

Dividends on preferred shares 7,544.6 136.7 106.5 111.1

Earnings (loss) on common shares (67.1) 225.0 474.0 269.9 (964.0)

Earnings (loss) per common share before
extraordinary items

Basic (.16) .78 1.69 1.07 (5.25)

Diluted (.16) .77 1.63 1.01 (5.25)

Financial position

Working capital (deficit) $ (119.0) $ (54.1) $ 268.3 $ 288.9 $ 363.6

Total assets 5,769.1 5,713.3 5,885.0 5,608.2 5,608.3

Long-term debt 745.0 536.3 950.2 1,106.7 1,438.4
Common stockholders’ equity 2,112.7 2,186.1 1,953.3 90.9 (210.3)
Common stockholders’ equity per share 6.59 6.93 6.29 .35 (.84)

Other data

Research and development $ 331.5 $ 333.6 $ 339.4 $ 308.3 $ 314.8

Capital additions of properties 199.4 198.3 219.6 209.1 184.0

Investment in marketable software 136.8 152.4 122.8 100.3 133.5

Depreciation 140.2 135.6 134.5 141.8 154.5

Amortization

Marketable software 145.5 115.5 110.9 112.3 97.2

Goodwill 16.5 21.8 21.7 18.2 970.1

Common shares outstanding (millions) 320.6 315.4 310.6 258.2 251.0

Stockholders of record (thousands) 28.4 ,29.7 32.8 28.6 37.3

Employees (thousands) 38.9 36.9 35.8 33.5 32.9

(1) Includes special pretax charges of $276.3 million, $127.6 million and $1,039.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1997, respectively.



47

David O. Aker
Senior vice president, world-
wide human resources. Pre-

viously vice president,
human resources, Unisys
information services and
systems. A Unisys officer

since 1995. Age 55.

Leigh Alexander
Vice president and chief
marketing officer. Previ-
ously president, Comdial

Enterprise Solutions, Com-
dial Corp. A Unisys officer

since 2000. Age 44.

Richard D. Badler
Vice president, corporate

communications. Previously
vice president, corporate
communications, General

Instrument. A Unisys officer
since 1998. Age 51.

Scott A. Battersby
Vice president and treas-

urer. Previously vice presi-
dent, corporate strategy

and development. A
Unisys officer since 2000.

Age 43.

Jack A. Blaine
Executive vice president
and president, worldwide
sales and services. Previ-
ously president, Unisys
Pacific Asia Americas

Africa. A Unisys officer
since 1988. Age 57.

Leo C. Daiuto
Vice president, product
development and tech-
nology. A Unisys officer

since 2000. Age 56.

Robert D. Evans
Vice president and presi-
dent, global outsourcing.
Previously vice president

and general manager,
Unisys outsourcing, North
America. A Unisys officer

since 2000. Age 54.

George R. Gazerwitz
Executive vice president

and president, systems &
technology. Previously
president, Unisys com-

puter systems. A Unisys
officer since 1984. Age 61.

Janet Brutschea
Haugen

Senior vice president and
chief financial officer. Pre-
viously vice president and

corporate controller. A
Unisys officer since 1996.

Age 43.

Joseph W. McGrath
Executive vice president

and president, global indus-
tries. Previously senior vice
president, major account
sales and chief marketing
officer. A Unisys officer

since 1999. Age 49.

Jack F. McHale
Vice president, investor
relations. Previously vice

president, Unisys corporate
communications. A Unisys

officer since 1986. 
Age 52.

Nancy Straus 
Sundheim

Senior vice president, gen-
eral counsel and secretary.
Previously vice president,

deputy general counsel and
secretary. A Unisys officer

since 1999. Age 50.

Janet B. Wallace
Senior vice president and
president, global network
services. Previously vice
president, services mar-

keting and sales, Compaq.
A Unisys officer since

2000. Age 50.

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Chairman, president and

chief executive officer. Pre-
viously managing partner

and chief executive,
Andersen Worldwide. A

Unisys officer since 1997.
Age 62.
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J.P. Bolduc
Chairman and chief executive officer,
JPB Enterprises, Inc., a merchant
banking, venture capital and real
estate investment holding company.
Previously served in the positions of
vice chairman, chief operating officer,
president and chief executive officer,
W.R. Grace & Co. Also serves as a
director of Proudfoot PLC. A Unisys
director since 1992. Age 62. 3,4

Edwin A. Huston
Retired vice chairman, Ryder System,
Inc., an international logistics and
transportation solutions company.
Previously served as senior execu-
tive vice president, finance, and
chief financial officer. Also serves as
a director of Answerthink, Inc., and
Enterasys Networks, Inc. A Unisys
director since 1993. Age 63. 1,4

Kenneth A. Macke
General partner of Macke Partners, a
venture capital firm. Previously
served as chairman and chief execu-
tive officer, Dayton Hudson Corpora-
tion, a general merchandise retailer.
A Unisys director since 1989. 
Age 63. 2,4

Theodore E. Martin
Retired director and president
and chief executive officer,
Barnes Group, Inc., a manufac-
turer and distributor of automo-
tive and aircraft components and
maintenance products. Previously
held the position of executive
vice president–operations. Also
serves as a director of Ingersoll-Rand
Company and Applera Corporation. A
Unisys director since 1995. Age 62. 3

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Unisys chairman, president and chief
executive officer since 1997. Previ-
ously served as managing partner and
chief executive, Andersen World-
wide, a global professional services
organization. Also serves as a
director of Avon Products, Inc., and
UBS AG. A Unisys director since
1997. Age 62.

Dr. James J. Duderstadt
President Emeritus and Univer-
sity Professor of Science and
Engineering at the University of
Michigan. Also serves as a
director of CMS Energy Corpora-
tion. A Unisys director since 1990.
Age 59. 1

Henry C. Duques
Director and chairman of First
Data Corporation, an electronic
commerce and payment services
company. Also serves as a
director of CheckFree Corporation
and SunGard Data Systems, Inc.
A Unisys director since 1998. 
Age 58. 2

Denise K. Fletcher
Executive vice president and chief
financial officer of MasterCard 
International, an international pay-
ment solutions company. A Unisys
director since July 2001. Age 53. 1

Gail D. Fosler
Senior vice president and chief
economist of The Conference
Board, a business-sponsored, non-
profit research organization. Also
serves as a director of H.B. Fuller
Company, DBS Holdings (Singa-
pore) and Baxter International, and
as a trustee of the John Hancock
Mutual Funds. A Unisys director
since 1993. Age 54. 3

Melvin R. Goodes
Retired director and chairman and
chief executive officer of Warner-
Lambert Company, a diversified world-
wide healthcare, pharmaceutical and
consumer products company. Previ-
ously held position of president and
chief operating officer. A Unisys
director since 1987. Age 66. 2

1 Audit Committee 2   Corporate Governance and Compensation Committee         3 Finance Committee        4  Nominating Committee



Investor Information

General Investor Inquiries and
Correspondence

Investors with general questions about the company
are invited to contact Unisys Investor Relations at 
215-986-6999 or investor@unisys.com.

Direct investor correspondence to:
Jack F. McHale
Vice President, Investor Relations
Unisys Corporation
Unisys Way
Blue Bell, PA  19424

Internet Address

Unisys makes investor information available on its
Web site at http://www.unisys.com/investor. This site
is updated regularly and includes quarterly earnings
releases, key management presentations, a delayed
Unisys stock quote, management biographies, key
publications such as the annual report, and other
information useful to stockholders.

Company Financial Information

Unisys offers a telephone information service that
provides fast, convenient access to company financial
news. Stockholders can use this service to call seven
days a week, 24 hours a day, to hear the most current
financial results and other general investor
information. Callers also can use this service to
request a printed copy of the current quarterly
earnings release by fax or mail.

•In the United States and Canada, call 
1-800-9-UNISYS (986-4797)

•Outside the United States, call +402-573-3678

Several publications that contain information of
interest to investors and potential investors are also
available via written or telephone request. These
publications include:

•2001 and previous-year annual reports
•Forms 10-K and 10-Q filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

You can obtain these publications without charge by
contacting:

Investor Relations, A2-15
Unisys Corporation
Unisys Way
Blue Bell, PA  19424
215-986-5777

Stockholder Services

The Unisys transfer agent is EquiServe Trust
Company, N.A. Administrative inquiries relating to
stockholder records, stock transfer, exchange of
common stock certificates (Convergent, PulsePoint,
Sperry or Timeplex) or change of ownership or
address may be directed to:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 2500
Jersey City, NJ 07303
201-324-0498
Toll free: 888-764-5596 (in the U.S. and Canada)
Hearing impaired: 201-222-4955 (TDD)
Internet: http://www.equiserve.com

Annual Meeting

Stockholders are invited to attend the 2002 Unisys
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held
at the Inn at Penn, 3600 Sansom Street, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, on Thursday, April 25, 2002, at 9:30 a.m.

Formal notice of the meeting, along with the proxy
statement and proxy materials, was mailed or
otherwise made available on or about March 16, 2002,
to stockholders of record as of February 28, 2002.

Common Stock Information

Unisys common stock (trading symbol “UIS”) is
listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange, on
exchanges in Amsterdam, Brussels and London, and
on the SWX Swiss Exchange.

At December 31, 2001, there were 320.6 million shares
outstanding and about 28,400 stockholders of record.

Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Statements made by Unisys in this annual report 
that are not historical facts, including those 
regarding future performance, are forward-looking
statements under the Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based 
on current expectations and assumptions and 
involve risks and uncertainties that could cause 
actual results to differ from expectations. These 
risks and uncertainties are discussed on page 21 
of this report.

Unisys, the Unisys logo and
ClearPath are registered trade-
marks of Unisys Corporation. All
other brands, logos and products
referenced in this annual report
are acknowledged to be trade-
marks or registered trademarks
of their respective holders.

This annual report was designed,
written and produced by 
Unisys Corporate Communica-
tions. Principal photography by
Richard Bowditch. 

Printed on recycled paper.
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